Bel Marin Keys Community Services District

4 Montego Key Office: 415.883.4222
Novato, CA 94949 www.bmkcsd.us
NOTICE & AGENDA
of the
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
March 20, 2025 - 7:30pm
BMKCSD Community Center

Board Members

Mercy Angelopulos Cheryl Furst Natalia Shorten
Vince Lattanzio Steve Nash

Assistance for people with disabilities: If you are disabled and need accommodation to participate in the
meeting, please call our Administrative Assistant, at 415.883.4222 so that the necessary arrangements can be
made.

This Board Meeting is available for real-time viewing via Zoom. The meeting starts promptly at 7:30pm
The Zoom link is (cut/paste may be required):
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/8221143740?pwd=y00Gutjhsl7fQTT6tyhR9sF4HoCMGb. 1
Meeting ID: 822 114 3740 Passcode: 491292
Please note that the Coordinator is unable to take telephone calls during the meeting.

Please mute your audio. Please raise your if you wish to speak during Public Comment or regarding an item on
the agenda. When called upon, please unmute your audio.

The Board meeting agenda and all supporting documents are available for public review at 4 Montego Key,
Novato, California, 94949, 72 hours in advance of a scheduled board meeting. Materials related to an item on
this agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet, and not otherwise exempt from
disclosure, will be made available for public inspection at the District Office at 4 Montego Key, Novato,
California, during normal business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00am to 4:00pm. Copies of supplemental
materials distributed at the Board meeting will be available for public inspection at the meeting location.

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL /PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
To speak on any item under discussion by the Board on this agenda, you may do so upon receiving
recognition from the Chair. Time limitations on public testimony may be imposed at the discretion of the
President in conformity with Board Meeting Policy Provisions. (Please Turn Off Cell Phones)

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
The Board of Directors will review, amend, and approve the prior month’s meeting Minutes
a. Regular Meeting of February 20, 2025 — Action item — Attached

IIN. CONSENT CALENDAR
Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion and
one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If the Board or the public desires discussion, that
item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and will be considered separately.
a. Ratification of Checks and Payroll Issued February 2025

IV.  PUBLIC COMMENT

a. Citizen Business/Oral and Written Communications on items not appearing on this agenda. Residents are
advised to limit discussion to one presentation per individual. Please observe the time limit of 3 minutes.




b.

Please fill out a BMKCSD Public Comment Sign-In Card and present it to the Clerk. Note: Any item
raised by a member of the public, which does not appear on the agenda, but which may require Board
action shall be referred to the District Staff for investigation and disposition — unless the item requires
emergency action by the Board or the need to take such action arose after the posting of the agenda
within the meaning of Cal. G.C. §54954.2(b).

Correspondence and/or Presentations

V. ADMINISTRATIVE COMMUNICATIONS

a.

VL )

District Manager’s Report

1. Financial
a. Bank of Marin — Closed compromised Measure D Checking account and
opened new Measure D Checking account
b. Fraudulent check update — Mail was stolen from recipients’ office park mail
box. Check was altered and deposited. MCSO is investigating.
ct Resolution 25.03 — Wells Fargo Bank — VOID resolution. Researching other
[nstitutions for Measure G fund account
2. Operations

a. Petty Cash — VOID resolution 25.02 - Item was not discussed in February
meeting. Keep petty cash funds at $50.00. Depositing $205.11 into operations
savings account

b. Maintenance projects completed:

1. Sound system — purchased a new receiver
2. Restaurant Repair — Serviced ice machine, refrigerator, freezer
3. Roy’s Sewer Service — Maintenance issue -cleaned out kitchen grease trap

c. Measure A funds — Continue to take a percentage of funds to pay for utilities,
landscaping and salaries or should only be taken from Operations account
d. Pixie Life Chair Yoga — Resident attendance and use of Community Center.

Allowing non-residents to participate.

3. Calendar
March 21, 2025 Free Seminar — Prop 19 — 3:00-5:00pm
April 17, 2025 Board Meeting - 7:30pm
April 19, 2025 Easter Egg Hunt — 11:00am
May 7, 2025 First food truck night — Lotus Grill 5:00pm
June 21, 2025 Community Car Show 11:00am-3:00pm
ad hoc Committee Reports
l. Grant Writing Committee Report - Update
2. BMK Community Safety Committee Report (ERT/Traffic/PGE) — Update
a. ERT -
b. Traffic -
c. PGE -
3. Beautification Committee Report - Update
4. Welcome to the Keys Committee Report -Update
5. Communications Committee Report- Update
6. Waterways Committee Report —Update

Resident maintenance water level drop schedule:
a. April 4-10 for North lagoon residents- weather permitting
b. April 11-17 South lagoon residents- weather permitting

TANDING COMMITTEE REPORTSA. D& G

a.
b.

Measure A Report— Update Meeting March 12, 2025
Measure D Report — Update

1. Maloney Construction — Proposal Attached -
Measure G Report — Update ~ Meeting March 16, 2025
a. SGH Revised February 12, 2025 Proposal -Attached



VIIL

VIIL

XL

XIL

b. Hydrology information — from Robin Lee — Attached
¢. Prioritization of Measure G repairs — from Terry Friesen - Attached

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a. Fishing violation — update

NEW BUSINESS

a. Election of officers

b. Mission Statement for Board — regarding retreats

c. Brown Act training/refresher for all board members and committee members
d. Swim Access Initiative — Taken out of Parks Committee

e. Purchase of BBQ grill for CSD use/rentals

PARKS AND OPEN SPACE
a. BMKCSD Park Survey - Update

ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTERESTS
Refuge — Update

SCC - Update

Pattern Energy — Update — Moratorium updates
Novato Creek Baylands Strategy — Update

Cal Trans — Highway 37 project - Update

o oo ow

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

ADJOURNMENT
All matters before the Board are being addressed — motion to adjourn.

Next regular meeting: April 17, 2025

Certificate of Posting

[ declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that [ am employed by the Bel Marin
Keys Community Services District, and that I caused this Notice & Agenda to be posted on the District’s
website (www.bmkcsd.us), as well as on the interior and exterior bulletin boards located at the District Office,

4 Montego Key, Novato, California, on the date reflected below.

/ g/(/ March 14, 2025

Lisa Lue, Board Clerk



Bel Marin Keys Community Services District

[
=
)
8

al

=

March 20, 2025 Regular Board Meeting
TABLE OF CONTENTS

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Regular Meeting of February 20, 2025

CONSENT CALENDAR

Ratification of Checks Issued — February 2025

ADMISTRATIVE COMMUNICATIONS
Bank of Marin account balances

Void Resolution 25.03-Wells Fargo account
Void Resolution 25.02-Petty Cash

Pixie Life Chair Yoga

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS A.D&G

Measure A

Measure D

Maloney Construction Proposal
Measure G

SGH Revised Proposal

Hydrology information
Prioritization of Measure G repairs

PARKS AND OPEN SPACE
BMKCSD Park Survey

14
16
17
19

21
26

35
45

54



Bel Marin Keys Community Services District

4 Montego Key Office: 415.883.4222
Novato, CA 94949 www.bmkcsd.us
MINUTES
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
February 20, 2025
BMKCSD Community Center

IL.

IIL.

Board Members

Mercy Angelopulos Cheryl Furst Natalia Shorten
Vince Lattanzio Steve Nash

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Agenda for this meeting was posted/published on February 14, 2025. President Lattanzio called the
Regular Board Meeting to order at 7:30pm and called roll. The directors present along with Vince
Lattanzio were, Steve Nash, Mercy Angelopulos, Cheryl Furst and Natalia Shorten. A quorum was
established, and the pledge of allegiance was recited. Minutes conducted by Board Clerk, Lisa Lue

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion to approve January 16, 2025 Minutes

Moved by Director: Lattanzio; Seconded by Director Furst
Director Vote: 5 Ayes

Motion Carried

CONSENT CALENDAR

Motion to approve Ratification of checks and payroll issued- January
Motion to approve Ratification of checks and payroll issued

Moved by Director: Lattanzio; Seconded by Director Angelopulos
Director Vote: 5 Ayes

Motion Carried

PUBLIC COMMENT

Resident M. Alberigi — Cares deeply for BMK. Has concerns regarding transparency, deferred
maintenance and false information Requests the board make a motion to stop all expenditures and
projects that can be paused and an investigation by the County to ensure ail policies/procedures are
being followed and elections for new officers.

Correspondence from Resident K. O’Haire — Measure A fund audit- Sunset Park was never applied
for until December 10, 2024. Residents are scared to attend meetings-fear of being attacked. Requests
Director Lattanzio to step down.

Correspondence from Resident B. Panico — Sunset Park petition list was not presented at December
board meeting -questioning validity. Sunset Park is not an appropriate place for the proposed
community beach. An alternative site should be explored.

Correspondence from Resident M. Alberigi — Objects to the January 16, 2025, Board Meeting
Minutes. Supporters list was not presented at the December CSD meeting. Objects to the validity of the
list of Beach Park supporters collected by the Parks Committee.

ZOOM - eleven guests

ZOOM PRESENTATION - Streamline — Web Host Jacob Erickson — Update for BMKCSD
Webpage. Only work with Districts and preferred vendor by CSDA., Transparency, Brown

Act, and ADA compliance requirements are taken care of on this website in a timely manner, in real
time and easy for the Board and staff to enter information. State and Federal legislature regarding ADA.



VL

VIIL

Sixty to Ninety days for initial build -migration, editing, refitting, and recreating all the content - cost
$1,300.00. Maintenance a month is $350.00 a month. With modules the monthly fee will increase to
$500.00. Storage is through Amazon web. The board would like to see the local districts they assist.

GARDENS - HOA
a. Update — Attached MOU and letter to surrounding residents
b.  Aylene Lambert, Garden’s HOA President — Presentation/Drawings
Resident A. Lambert, President of Garden’s HOA — 30 units -discussed the need for swimming
platform behind Garden’s Condos with a solution for a safe and equitable access to the South lagoon.
Spoke of Measure G votes and getting grant money to pay for docks. Asking for two docks would be
happy with one dock. Easements for homes on the lagoon are 50 ft. Asking for 25 ft dock easement.
Lambert’s goal is to have an open forum tonight.
Response from Director Lattanzio — Measure G meeting, Gardens was asked what their interest are
and one thing that came up was access to lagoon. An easement was offered and required to build in that
area. MOU states Gardens build the dock, own the dock, and maintain the dock. Gardens does not want
to offer access to anyone outside of Gardens HOA.
Resident A. Lambert reiterates there was not a direct offer made but talks about communities and
impact on access to the lagoon and grant money available for the docks. Grant required public access
and CSD was turned away for funding. Gardens own Hudson Park dock and is under-utilized. Gardens
is a swimming and non-motorized boat community.
Resident Comments — 6 Ayes — community access, safety for elderly and children, easement
10 Nays ~ risk and liability, no notification, greenbelt left as is, little access for
boats to turn around

Motion to table for more time to re-examine new information
Moved by Director: Nash; Seconded by Director Angelopulos
Director Vote: 5 Ayes

Motion Carried - TABLED

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMUNICATIONS
District Manager’s Report

1. Financial
a. Bank of Marin — Account Balances — Credit Card accounts now linked to
QuickBooks
b. Resolution 25.01 — Removal of Chris Fehring’s name from Bank of Marin -

Motion to approve resolution removing Chris Fehring from Bank of Marin signature card
Moved by Director: Lattanzio; Seconded by Director Furst
Director Vote: 5 Ayes
Motion Carried
c. Resolution 25.03 — Wells Fargo Bank — Approval of moving Measure G fund
accounts to Wells Fargo Bank
Motion to approve resolution to move Measure G fund account to Wells Fargo Bank
Moved by Director: Lattanzio; Seconded by Director Nash
Director Vote: 5 Ayes
Motion Carried
d. Check written to Jessica Donald on February 21, 2024 — Should have been
made payable to JDH Corrosion. Past DM did not void check and recipient
cashed check. A letter was sent to Donald regarding W-9. No evidence of her
being a vendor for BMKCSD. - Director Nash to investigate further
2. Operations
a. As of February 1, 2025, Brian Clark, Waterways/Maintenance Manager,
received a merit raise. Lisa Lue has accepted the District Manager position
b. Review of Zoom attendance ~Zoom Pro is approximately $16.00 plus tax per
month. purchase a laptop and camera. — Attendance over four months
September 9, October 10, November 6, Town Hall 10, December 35, January
4.



Public access is important, cost is minimal. CSD purchased Zoom for one year
$159.00. *note*Does not include more than one administrative user. Sound
system is being diagnosed with SoundDesign.
Motion to approve Zoom/office equipment for CSD not to exceed $1,500.00
Moved by Director: Lattanzio; Seconded by Director Shorten
Directors Vote: 5 AYES
Motion Carried
c. Marin County Counse! Invoice for services - $1,558.25 OPS, $338.75 Measure
G = $1,897.00 paid
d. BKK Invoice for services (insurance for clubs/employment status)- $907.50
OPS paid
e. Petty Cash Resolution— Dissolve Petty Cash Fund - Discussion — Action item
*item was not discussed*
f. BMKCSD Accounting Policies and Procedures Manual 2014 — Needs updating
Lisa will mark up the document first and submit it to the board for a review
March 20, 2025 BOD meeting TABLED
g Scanning project — [n house documentation scanning from Xerox to computer
and stored on thumb drive — Scan to One Drive with CSD control
h. Pixie Life — extended pilot program until end of April. No charge for residents
attending class on Mondays 2:30-3:30pm. This is a Community event. No
rental charge for Pixie Life. A request was made to post on the marquee once in
awhile. Suggests she put a sign in the median
i Restaurant Repair — Left side oven inoperable. Estimate $1,248.52. Repaired
and paid
3. Calendar
February 25, 2025 Deadline for submissions for N2N
February 28, 2025 Potluck for Mail Carrier Dino 3:30-6:30pm
March 20, 2025 Board Meeting 7:30pm
March 21, 2025 Free Seminar-Prop 19 3:00-5:00pm
May 7, 2025 First food truck night — Lotus Grill
*Corrected date*  June 21, 2025 Community Car Show 11:00am-3:00pm

a. ad hoc Committee Reports
a. ad hoc Committee Reports

1. Grant Writing Committee Report — No update

2. BMK Community Safety Committee Report (ERT/T raffic/PGE) -
a. Update Traffic Meeting February 18, 2025 Meeting — 2023 Survey and
Traffic improvement priority list sent to DPW Director.
DPW does research on reported accidents and compiles reports and then
moves forward with their findings. Community will be involved in
decisions.
b. Update ERT Meeting — Opened Community Center during Tsunami,
During rain/wind storms opened as well. During debriefing, the Committee
is in good shape. Director Lattanzio thanks to Director Nash and Brian Clark
for cleaning up debris on the roadway and waterways. Community heroes.
Two storm drains clogged and flooded three streets. Emergency call to Roy’s
Sewer service and they cleared the clogged drains. Will work with DPW,
Supervisor Eric Lucan to find who is responsible for maintenance

3. Beautification Committee Report — Proposal from Brightview for plants $364.61
Met with Alejandro -cars driven in plant area.
Look into boulders or rocks for a barrier. Last year’s planting $136.00,
after Director Furst donated $1,000 to the Beautification Committee
Plant ten plants in the first or second week in March. Would like
approval to plant on the island. Will submit the cost of plants. Budget is $500.

4. Welcome to the Keys Committee Report -No update Meeting scheduled for early

March



VIII.

5. Communications Committee — Update Meeting February 12, 2025 — Minutes attached
Web host information — Entertaining two website hosts- Streamline
$1,300/$350 monthly or $500 with staff module. Flexible and
works with other CSDA. Civic Plus -Much fancier -$6,000 for main module.
Easy to navigate. Can accept rental payment online. 90 days to set up
The board would like to see information on other vendor. Director Furst to send
link to directors. Would like to have a presentation from Civic Plus.
b. Office policies and procedures — Binder is in the office with all policies
¢. Transparency/Governance Checklist — Director Shorten covered this under
Director’s report
Resident M. Alberigi — Would like marquee listings to be clearer with less abbreviations.
Committee meetings would like to see meetings at CSD to include everyone
and posted.
6. Parks Committee — No update
a. Residents questioning validity of petition signers for Sunset Park/Beach-
Attachment — TypeForm website survey and change.org. Petitions
submitted to CSD in the past were accepted with no questions asked. What are
the policy and procedures for submission. Submitted petition late and
was not in the board packet, but on the table at meeting. Audience members
state they did not receive Parks flyer on Bahama Reef
Resident M. Alberigi — Addresses the petition and including children on it,
that was not part of the December board packet and the minutes are incorrect.
Motion to remove petition from January16, 2025 board minutes and petition was received in February
20, 2025 minutes*Motion was not completed*
Motion to move Parks Committee to standing committee to be in compliance with the Brown Act
Moved by Director: Nash; Seconded by Director Angelopulos
Directors Vote: 5 AYES
Motion Carried

7. Waterways Committee —Update Meeting February 6, 2025
a. Map rules — Update Simplify and clarify the rules for boating,
swimming and general rules for waterways map. The cost is $2,000. Received
advertising money to cover the costs related to waterways community.

Motion to approve map and waterways rules

Moved by Director: Lattanzio; Seconded by Director Shorten

Directors Vote: 5 AYES

Motion Carried
b. Access card application — New form for boat ramp cards. Residents will be
issued a number for the street they live on and a number for the application.
Example BMK Blvd street number 1 and application number 1. Your number
Will be 1-1. This will be displayed on your boat, trailer, kayak, canoe, etc.
CSD will provide decals and will give CSD a way to return your lost items
Protecting your private information. Trailers and boats, parked in BMK
[llegally (no CSD number displayed)we will call to have towed.
Rules and education programs for the community. Map will show ski zones and
speed limit and no wake zones. Enforcement is needed. Rules need to be added
to codified by the Board of Supervisors. No anchoring in ski zone due to
aerator systems and long tubes in lagoons. Considering few anchoring buoy

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS D & G
a. Measure G - Update

1. Hydrology information — Update ~ email from Robin Lee. Responded to initial
- Proposal and waiting for price.
b. Measure D - Marine Maintenance Waterways
1. SGH Engineering Proposal February S, 2025- Discussion — T&M estimate $15,000.00



XI.

XII.

XIIL.

Adding pipe between North and South to release water and improved waterway release
Overflow on the South lagoon

Motion to approve SGH February 5, 2025 estimate $15,000.00

Moved by Director: Lattanzio; Seconded for discussion only by Director Nash

Seconded by Director Furst

Directors Vote: 5 AYES

Motion Carried

2. SGH Deficiency repairs Proposal February 12, 2025 — Discussion - Fixed fee

$53,000.00 — Amount has been adjusted, but not re-submitted
Adding pipe between North and South to release water and improved waterway release
Overflow on the South lagoon TABLED

Measure G next meeting March 16, 2025 1:00pm to 3:00pm at CSD

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

a. Fishing violations — Information from resident Kelly O’Haire — Attachment — Letter sent to Fish
and Wildlife Patrol Lieutenant — Director Nash will follow up and make a call to the Sheriff
Scardina.

PARKS AND OPEN SPACE

a. BMKCSD Park Survey — Two park surveys. One from the park committee and one from a
survey of 2015. Lisa Lue mentions Montego Park and irrigation repair to
be removed from survey. These are CSD repairs. Missing parks-Caribe North and Bahama
Reef. Director Shorten responds for the Park Committee trying to capture items that need to be
done. Director Angelopulos questions a list of choices for the survey. Director Nash would like
it condensed and paper option, residents might not like QR code option.
2015 Park survey — Much more simplified and can add what is most important.
A park map is needed. Update the landscaper’s map and highlight the parks.

Resident comment — The survey should be objective and strike the word equity. Would like to see

more information and mailed to residents.

TABLED

ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTERESTS
a. Refuge- No update
b. SCC — Follow up on transfer of South levee at February meeting
1. Pattern Energy — Purchased Leveroni property. Would like the board’s authorization to set
up a meeting with the CEO of Pattern Energy, Barbara Salzman and Audubon Society
requesting they donate or sell land to Audubon Society for restoration
2. Refuge Permission for Director Lattanzio to speak with Pattern Energy and approve letter to
Damon Connelly — Letter of support Approved and sent
Moss Landing Power Plant — Attached news article
4. Write a support letter from BMKCSD regarding Bill #303 — Request Assemblywoman
Addis to lower the 200 MWh to | MWh - BMK respectfully requests a change to MWh.
Assembly Addis proposed legislation to limit the placement of lithium
battery storage facilities near any community
c. Novato Creek Baylands Strategy — Dredging of creek high priority.
d. Cal Trans - Highway 37 project — No update

A S )

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS




XIV. ADJOURNMENT
All matters before the Board are being addressed — motion to adjourn.
Motion to adjourn 11:37pm
Moved by Director: Lattanzio; Seconded by Director Furst
Director Vote: 5
Motion Carried

Next regular meeting: March 20, 2025

Certificate of Posting

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that [ am employed by the Bel Marin
Keys Community Services District, and that I caused this Notice & Agenda to be posted on the District’s
website (www.bmkesd.us), as well as on the interior and exterior bulletin boards located at the District Office,
4 Montego Key, Novato, California, on the date reflected below.

/4 March 14, 2025

Lisa Lue, Board Clerk




Bel Marin Keys

Cormmunity Sendoes Districy

RATIFICATION OF WARRANTS AND PAYROLL

FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF March 20, 2025

In accordance with Government Code §37208, ratification of the following warrant amounts is presented
to the Bel Marin Keys Community Services District Board of Directors:

Regular Payable Checks: $ 4441943
Payroll Checks: $ 14,691.00
Total Disbursements: $ 59,110.43

All individual warrants and warrant registers are available for review by the Board Members and the
public upon request. Payroll registers are confidential and not available for individual review in
accordance with State Law.

The necessary internal controls are in place to safeguard the District’s conformance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, sound business practices and prudent budgetary principles. Payroll

documents and warrants invoices have been reviewed and approved by the District Manager before
payment,

Lisa Lue, Board Clerk March 11, 2025

00

07



007001 994 17

00002 2nsoubelp uano Yo

uonosd

LLBO8L 70z ‘g sequisnon

12652 sybi 1000

89'6€1L W6 Jeans Aenigey

Buiues|d urelp
wuojs Aouabrewg

00°000'C
61861

20Z woly sjuerd

0Z'e8l JuSLWSSINGUISY

286.l'¢E

usHoys elejeN

Jeday jueinejsay

SISJOA 40 Jensibay Ajunon uuep

MRS EReE

293 0@

90IAI9G J1amag sA0Y

dioD sen

Isundg usy)

sa0Ineg Buidasyoog vay

8681

6681

0061

1061

c061l

€061

061

Go6l

¥o8y9

H08yQ

¥08y2

%080

¥oayo

H0ayo

3o8yo

¥08yo

¥o9yo

G20Z/8L/e

§20¢/81/C

=TAVAL T A

Geoz/Lere

Gcoz/sere

G2oz/s¢e/e

ETAVA L TALA

G20c/sere

Geoéssele

2896
- JUNooOY

Bunelsadp
c89%
- JUNC2DY
Bunelado
2895
- JuUno2oY
Buneladp
2895
- JUNOYYY
Bunesadp
2899
- JUNO2DY
BunesadQ
¢89S
- JUNOJDY
Bupesad
c89S
- JUNCYYY
Bugesado
¢89S
- JUNO2OY
Bupesadp
c895
- JUNOJDY
Bujelsadp

junowy uonduasag/owsy

#IA] sues)

ajeq

JUN0JJdY

S2Z0Z ‘82 Arenugaj 03 §Z0Z ‘T Aenagag s1unoddy Sunpay) - gSIHNNG

00 08



L0'026'9

00°LLE'}

00°00S

AV

62’958

05°206

A A4

00001

00001

00°00l

00001

s39) |eba]

894 Ji

894 4]

994410

994 1g

MaIABug

894 Ajjioe4 pood udojaaeg Ayunwiwo)- ulep Jo Aunod

edwnd eoissar

Buinoy dgv

seoinag Buidesyyoog vay

1abauy| g yseg iseg

sueg uszyo isiy

Isind [lisyp

snojndojafiuy Aoispy

YseN 2Ad)S

olzueye asuIp

1881

888i

6881

0681

1681

c68l

€681

G681

168l

30940

%9yo

¥9Yyd

¥98YD

¥0ayo

¥08yo

09y

%08y0

¥08yo

¥8y)

#984d

Seoé/LLie

Geoe/LLe

Scoe/LLie

Geoc/Lie

Szoe/LLie

Gcoe/LLe

Seoe/LLie

Gcoe/sLie

G2oz/8Lre

Gcoe/8ire

G2oc/8Lre

2896
- JUNODdY
Buyesadp
2895
- JUNC2Y
Bupesadp
2899
- JUNODIY
Bupesadp
2899
- JUNOYIY
Bunesadp
2895
- JUNO22Y
Bupesadp
289G
- JUNOJ2Y
Bunesadp
289¢%
- JUNOOYY
Bupesadp
289%
- JUNO2OY
Bunesadp
289S
- JUNOYYY
6unesado
2899
- JUNoJDYy
Bunesadp
2896
- JunosaYy
Bunesadp

00 09



80'9.¢'61

00°00S

00°/8

08'6ee

LLALTA4

GZ'85S')

lecel

00'G0'L

66°¢Cl

00°/8

SO[j0Iq Monuwt xiyenby

winjey

ysodaq |euay usuoys elejeN

uO

dio9 sepui)

saoinsg Buideayyoog vay

sa9) [eban jasuno) AJunoo uuep
jIauwB|/80O 181V
Buiues|o

JusAa pue Buiues|) soueudjulely dojg auQ

eiquiey|y

U0

8.8l

6.81

088l

1881

288l

£88l

¥881

G881

9881

¥9yD

H9yo

Ho8yo

398Y9

#9340

LTI

¥o9yo

%08y

%994

¥o9yD

Ggcoe/sere

TAV AL /1A

Geoe/vie

Geoc/vie

Geocivre

TAV AL /1A

Gecoc/iLie

S202/L L2

Gcoe/n e

S20c/LiL/e

609,
- Bunioayp

d
ainseapy

289S
- JUNO2DY

Bunesado
¢896
- JUNO2OY
Bunesadp
2896
- JUNOJDY
Bunesado
2896
- JUN02oY
Bugesado
¢89S
- JUNO2oYY
Buyesadp
289G
- JUNO2oY
Bunesedp
¢89S
- JUNO22Y
Bunesedp
89S
- JUNOJJY
BunesadQ
€894
- JUNO2YY
Bunesado



00'81E

L.°961

L1°20¢

L1°20¢

00 ¥t

eweyegq

osdAjen

uiydiog

Buuespo
ysniq SWNQ

qeT yjeaH olgnd ouejog edep

181V

131V

191V

sfejusy 1sapA 8D

398D

Hoayo

3H08y9

384D

¥oayg

609/

- Bunpoayp
a
ainses
6092

- Buyosyo
a
amnseapy
609/

- Bunjoayo
a
ainseap
6092

- Bunpioayd
a
ainseap
6092

- Buiyosyo

a
ainsesp

gcoe/LLe

G2coz/8Lie

GcoemslLic

Gcoe/8Lie

TAVALTATA

14

00



WNS1d430 SZRTIR0 1B I8y

L jo | ebed SZ/Le/e0 - STeOiZ0 e1eq pu3 - UelS poued WY IS:80 SZ/SZ/Z0 eyBqg uny
Ammwumg Juewyedsq Q SO shed urey [og  GEOL-BOCE CEOO
2
-]
L own)
(ot
PrLLL9Z '99Z'8 (520Z) QLA D9’ 160'E yi: 1% afieyung ELP02 T pa'sol orzZIS T606L'Z (5Z02) LA
L'z '992'9 {10) LD P9’ 160'E 9L efileyaing T4 TV BE'SOL or'ZLS Z6'061'2 (1o} a1
8¥'ac9'0lL "0SY'E (934) ALWEL LSL'L oL uey) dw3 v (i) VO gl Z0E1e $8°018 (834) aw
90°22¢'S L'egL's GZ/RZ/Z0 6 08S 670 ul) dw3 v ‘L Wi YO BET 90'801 Yo'Zovr $2/192/20
eFFLE'S ‘1991 STUPLITO|LL0LS Lo uey) dwgy) Sl ,.ﬁz_ VO poy 9610} 088t STVLZ0
iNg 1

OTININN diva
24 FWviiaan 238 208 WIAHD

STV WIHLO TTV

15°408'2 {5202) aLa

192082 152082 {10) a1o
¥E'€09'L vEE09'L {83d) 1w
80°Z€8 80°Z¢8 SZI9Tr20
0Z'LLL 92'LLL SZPLIZ0
SNOLLONGRA XvLaNd aiva

TVAOL 33 VI BdNIS 33 NL0Y MNOEHD

LT6L'L IIGESIC
T6LL'L Anaesia
0L'€00'E Amqesiq vo
orvis') P68 Ayges vo
vZ62h'L 808 Apges vo

6EZ1S LE'061'Z S202) QLA
6CZI8 L&0BL'Z (L0) alo
20€1Z SE0LE (g34) A1N
9080} SO SZ/9ZIZ0
96101 ogehy STFLIZO

pewL alva
wiol SONITTONHLIM YIMLO TV XV ANOINI W01 XYL INMODNI TVI0 AVL SNOINI TvI01 £ JINIQ3d THNVII0EN JES 208 NIAND

BLLOE LN 69056 BL'19't (520Z) ALA
BLIOE N 69066 g1'19e'L (1D) a1o
Z5°75SW LLZO0Y 29255 (93d) auw
9Z'9/ZW S180 9Tz SZ/8220
9Z'9LZW 96°€6l) 9T0IZ SZYLIZO

Mg XV¥i NON alva
ONINVHHISD U3 VNI IT4NIS HILYN UINMO IBIN-SE0) SNITE 8 MOTHD

0l ZEE'SE 00'951 0Z6EL'L  OZBEL'L  OL'L¥E 09°655'2¢ 009 00z 00ZE 059 05058 (5z02) QLA

0L Zee'sE 00951 0Z6EL'L  OZBEL'L  OVLFE 09'655'Z¢ 009 o0z wx 059 05rose (D) a1o

DGR 00°L69'PL 0068 (a3d) aiw

Ye'zSH'L PETSH'L _ 0061 SZIBZIZ0

99'9£2'L 99'8E2'L ool SZTLIZ0
SONINYY3 OH

H3AHLO 3Ava

TVLOL v WNOD SnNoa NS T0H MITHD

Qs osieyuuen 99 GEOL-BOSEH £EO0

AYVININNS LNINWLYVdIa



WNsld3a SerLIE e PO

1 Jo | efied STILOEQ - SZRELIT0 ajeq pu3 - Yy poued Wd #1140 ST/0LED BjBq uny
Kiewwng juowpedaq Q S D s4e) upe jeg BCAL-80C) £E0O0
ey
b s’
 amm.
[
0Z'S6P'2E gesel'ol {sz02) QuABL €T’ g9'8l eBieyoms LEk 00829 02689' {5z02) AlA

geser'ol (1o} alopLezL'e 899} efseyoing
£'898'L {uvW) GLNBL'ZE0 ML uedy dw3 ywo
L'808'L ST LEORL'ZED 'l VLTTRL TR )

0Z°S6Y'2E
9L'€8L'S
9.e8l'S

LiL 00'8Z9 02'589'C {LD) 1o
'9 09'S1L 8z ¥6¥ (yvw) aLw
'g 09611 8Z v6r SIPLIED

dava |
WITHD TVLIOL

ANINACTININND
HLViS

OTdNZNN aiva

SALLITIAVIE ¥IHLO TIV

S9'6E9'E GO'6ED'E (5z02) ALA
GO'6€9'C GO'6ES'E (oyaio
80°268 80°ZE8 (yvw) a1
80'Ze8 80°Zca STIPLIED

SNOLLDONGAA Xvigud aiva
TYLOL YEHLO TV 33 vdI 3T7dNIS 33 NioF NIAND

£0'ZIe's
€o'zie's
8.'ze9'L
9.Z229')

TYLOL SONITTIOHHLIM ¥3HLO TTV |

XV1 SNODNI TYI01

L9 LN PPESL'L
L9 LN PEsLL
9292 SL802
92'9Len SL'80e

ONIN-VHHASD ¥3 VI 31dNIS HIAVN

preoc'sy 00951 0Z'6GEL'L 0ZBELL  OViIvE ¥6°LZ5'0p 009 00ZE ooz 059 0588 (5z02) ALA
t'60E'Sh 00951 0ZBEL'L 0Z'6EL'L oL ive ¥6'225'0F 009 002 002E 059 oseee (o) aio
YE'TL6'L YETLE'L 006 (o) A
vE'ZL6'L ¥£'ZL6'L o0ee SeUrLIL0
SONINYYE
H3IHLO
TvL0L [ ]

Qs Oshsyuuep jog SL0L-00CE £BOD

ANVINNNS LNINLNVdIA



whh. _ . .

ACCOUNTS

Good Morning, Lisa Lue

Bank of Marin Waterways Checking -07609

Current Balance $1,342.42
Available Balance $469,286.41
Bank of Marin Measure A Checking -15586

Current Balance $49,830.42
Available Balance $49,830.42
Bank of Marin PUBLIC FUNDS -42715

Current Balance $0.00
Available Balance $0.00
Bank of Marin Operations Checking -75682

Current Balance $33,759.45
Available Balance $33,759.45 .
Bank of Marin Measure G -83912

Current Balance $10,199.14
Available Balance $10,199.14
Bank of Marin Operations Savings -07191

Current Balance $2,394,145.24
Available Balance $2,394,145.24

00 1*




Bank of Marin Waterways Savings -10195

Current Balance $467,943.99
Available Balance $467,943.99

Bank of Marin Measure D Reserves 14155 -14155

Current Balance $876.87
Available Balance $876.87

Bank of Marin Measure G Savings -37296

Current Balance $615,783.41
Available Balance $615,783.41

Bank of Marin Measure A Savings -38521

Current Balance $112,971.55
Available Balance $112,971.55
ASSET SUMMARY 7\

Operations Savings

“‘ YOOKX07191 64.94%
&

Current Balance $2,394,145.24
Available Balance $2,394,145.24

5 43,686,852

%Total Assets

00 '~



Bel Marin Keys Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE BEL MARIN KEYS
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO. 25-03

A RESOLUTON OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BEL MARIN KEYS COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT OPENING A WELLS FARGO BROKER LIQUID DEPOSIT (BLD)
ACCOUNT FOR MEASURE G FUNDING

WHEREAS. the Bel Marin Keys Community Services District shall continue to operate and
provide services to its community -

WHEREAS, in the interest of the Community . situated funds shall accrue in a Broker Liquid
Deposit (BLD) account for economical operation of the District. and

WHEREAS, controlling authority requires the separation of such funds:

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED. that the Board of Directors of the Bel
Marin Keys Community Services District. does hereby determine and approve.

[. The above recitals are true and correct.

2. A broker liquid deposit (BL.D) account is opened at Wells Fargo Bank for Measure G funds.

3. Funds. designated solely for Measure G purposes. be deposited. transferred. and maintained
in said broker liquid deposit(BLD) account. reseryved for such specific purposes.

4. When obligations are due for payment and there are sufficient funds in the account so
designated to pay such obligations. the District Manager may cause payment thereof to be
made from this account. and transfer funds between accounts to ensure sufficient fundimyg

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this February 20. 2025. by the following vote
AYES: NAYS ABSTAIN: ABSENT:

IT IS SO ORDERED.

Jifice L4ttanzid, Pr SM
_ Boarfi of Directors—
/, / B
Attest. j/ .

Lisa Lue

Clerk of the Board

+ MONTEGO KEY NOVATO. CA 94949 415-883-4222 ADMIN « BMKCSD.US

16



l. Bel Marin Keys Community Services District

BEL MARIN KEYS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-02

RESOLUTION TO DISOLVE THE PETTY CASH FUND FOR
BEL MARIN KEYS COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT

WHEREAS, Bel Marin Keys Community Services District has determined that the existing
petty cash fund is no longer necessary for day-to-day operations.

WHEREAS, Bel Marin Keys Community Services District no longer has a need for a petty cash
fund.

WHEREAS, Bel Marin Keys Community Services District Manager and Waterways Manager
have district issued credit cards and/or spending accounts on file at select vendors.

NOW THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED that the petty cash fund is hereby dissolved, with a current
balance of $255.11:
® The District Manager shall collect all remaining cash from the petty cash envelope and deposit it
into Bel Marin Keys Community Services District general operating account.
¢ The District Manager shall record a QuickBooks entry to reflect the closure of the petty cash fund
account.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 20™ day of February 2025, by the following vote:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

ITIS SO ORDERED.

Vince Lattanzio, President Board of Directors

Attest:

Lisa Lue
Clerk of the Board

00 7

4 MONTEGO KEY NOVATO. CA 94949 415-883-4222 ADMIN@BMKCSD.US



CERTIFICATION
I, Lisa Lue, Board Clerk of the Bel Marin Keys Community Services District. Novato, California, hereby
certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 25-02 is a full, correct and true copy of the Resolution passed by
the Board of Directors of Bel Marin Keys Community Services District, Novato, California, at a regular
meeting held on the 20" of February, 2025, and [ further certify that said Resolution is in full force and

effect.

L_isé Lue, Clerk of the Board

00 18



Thank you for sharing! #s ate-all Magia sepiars? Where exactly at Bel Marin
Keys is this? And does it cost anything? I want to show my grandma and try to convince
her to give this a try!! Thank you!

Like  Reply Share

driana Booth Author - Bel Marin Keys - 1w
ﬂ“‘“ hi there! This is Adriana. Thank you for checking in with us. We are

osting classes at the yacht club at 4 Montego Key Way in Novato at 2:30 every
Monday. It is a chair-based program so it’s appropriate for fe with limited
mobility and it’s a really fun group of people! - ; ,
e, ipss ). We love all we do, and we love our seniors, and I
can tell you from personal experience that watching people go from having no
mobility to having a little bit of a rosy cheeks in a smile, and doing things I
didn’t think they could do, just makes me feel really good inside. ¥otrre
welcamadtodpinheras-well, We do offer complimentary classes for caregivers
as well. Please feel free to give me a call if you have any other questions at

LS T T -

415-717-9441
Like Reply Share
w1

‘Anna Bakhmatova - McKeon Ct - 1w
iana oh wow, how amazing!!!! I love my grandparents very very much.
ybe [ can get my grandma to come check out a class, and see for herself that
it might be worth it for her to try and convince my stubbom grandpa to go, to
improve his mobility, which he drastically needs! Thank you so much for doing
this incredible service for our elderly community!! [ might actually take you up
on the caregiver class, as well!!! Thank you!

Like Reply Share

driana Booth Author - Bel Marin Keys « 1w
, Pleziﬁ let the:in know that we do have a number of elderly couples that
come together. And they report why does significant improvement in mobility
Just after the first class.

Like Reply Share

00

19



Q bel marin keys

EVERYONE WELCOME

NOVATO NEWS

PIXIEPULZ LOVES SENIORS+ OFFERS FREE CLASSES

FUN SENIOR
=== FITNESS

Step inte the vibrant senior
fitnees movement that is
enchanting the United States,
beginning right here in the
charming WNovato, Californiat
You know the age-old adage: if
you don't use it, you'll lose it.
PixiePulz has conjured the
perfect blend of joy and
vitality through delightful and
gentle fitness classes designed
for those aged 55 and above,
usind a CHAIR for Stability.
This magical axperience melds
yoge, Pilates, tai chi. and the
nostalgia of old-echaol
serobics, with en emphasis on
breathing and posture @
flexibility ® strengthening.
Prepare to leave with rosy
cheeks aglow and a smile
gracing your lips. Join us  You're smomger than you think

every Monday at 2:30 PM at the Plasto join us at 2:30 PU every Monday at
Bol Marin Keys ¥acht Club, 5 Montego Key Way. Bring your water
located ot 4 Montego Key Way. bottla and wear comfortable clothing. We
Who is ready to embark on :’;km or “;;t:':mmms
thie enchanting journey?

www PixiePuls oom Page )

Chats

00 20



Released by Sean Maloney on Jan 30, 2025 Released

MALONEY

Construction..

Foundation Solutions

Maleney Construction Inc.

74 Digital Dr Ste 6 + Novato, CA 94949-5742 . Phone 707 799-8890

Bel Marin Keys Community Service Dist.
Cell: +14158834222

Job Address-
4 Montego Key
Novato, CA 94949

Print Date: 1 30-2025
Proposal for Concrete Curtain Wall Leak Barrier

I/WE, the Owner(s) of the premises described above authorize Maloney Construction Inc, hereinafter referred to as “Contractor” te furnish all
materials and labor necessary to construct and/or improve these premises according to the fallowing terms. specifications and provisions:

Build Curtain Walls that total 32" long (24' and 8 and approximately 6 tall

1. Break out concrete obstructions along the 24’ length of wing wall and 8" on the opposite side.

2. Excavate a trench to allow for a Curtain wall to be embedded into the ground at least 3' to help prevent water transfer. All soil will
remain on site and be used to back-fill once the new wall is in place.

3. Epoxy dowel rebar hooks into the existing wing wall and build a rebar reinforcing for the new wall.
4, Set forms, pour concrete, and finish the top of the wall with a slant away from the wing wall to shed standing water.

5. Remove forms and backfill soil against the new wall.

6. Remove all debris from the job site that was created by our work.

Contractor propeses to perform the abave work, (subject to any additions, or deductions pursuant to authorized change orders), for
the sum shown below:

TOTAL PRICE

$34,962

00 21



Contractor will submit progress billings for contracted items. Payments are due upon receipt of each invoice.
COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF WORK:

Material purchasa/Job start $16.500

Weekly progress billing ____ $14,962

Work complete $3.500

Commencement of work shall mean the physical delivery of materials onto the premises and/or the performance of any labor, and
commencement shall be subject to delays as described in provision (6).

Approximate Start Date: Appraximate Completion Date:

ACCEPTANCE:

This contract is approved and accepted. | (we) understand there are no oral agreements or understandings between the parties in this
contract. The written terms, provisions, plans (if any) and specifications are afl part of the contract in it's entirety. Any changes,
additions or adjustments to this contract shall be submitted in the form of written change order only, requiring signature from both
parties.

Additional provisions of this contract are listed below and may be continued on subsequent pages.
OWNER/AGENT, see the “Arbitration of Disputes” {provision 14) and the NOTICE where indicated.
Initial in the same place on EACH COPY of this contract.

Note: This contract may be withdrawn ar

renegotiated after 14 days from date of contract if

not approved and signed by BOTH parties.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS:

Unless otherwise specified herein, the following additional provisions are expressly incorporated into this contract:

1. Contract, Plans, Specifications, Permits and Fees.. The work described in this contract shall be done according to the plans and the plan
specifications (if any) except in the case of conflict when the provisions of this contract shall have control over both the plans and the plan
specifications, All required building permits will be paid for by Owner and obtained by Contractor. All other charges, taxes, assessments, fees etc,
of any kind whatsoever, required by any government body, utility company or the like shall be paid for by Owner.

2. Property Lines: Owner is responsible to locate and inform Contractor of the location of all property lines. At the discretion and direction of
Contractor, Owner may be required to provide at Owner's expense, a licensed surveyor's map of the property showing property lines

3. Installation: Owner understands that Contractor may or may not install the materials. Contractor has the right to subcontract any part of or all
of, the work herein,

4. Modification of work: Should Owner, construction lender, government body, engineer or inspector require any modification to the work
covered under this contract, any cost incurred by Contractor shall be added to the contract Price as extra work, and Owner agrees tc pay
Contractor for any such extra work. All extra work, as well as any other modifications to the original contract, shall be specified and approved by
both parties in a written change order. All change orders shall become a part of this contract, and shall be incorporated herein.

5. Owner's Responsibilities: Owner is responsible for the following:
(a) Access to on site water source and electrical power

(b} Space within the work site for temporary storage of equipment, tools and materials. O D 2 ﬁ



appliances, draperies, clothing, personal effects, satellite dishes, vehicles, taols, garden art, birdbaths, or garden equipment. These

are examples only. The items which the owner needs 1o relocate and/or protect so that Contractor can perform the work in this contract are not
limited to the list of examples provided. IN the event that Owner fails to relocate any items which impede the progress or performance of work,
the Contractor may relocate these items as required, but in no way is Contractor responsible for damage to these Items during their relocation,
nor during the performance of the work

{d) Obtain written permission from the owner(s} of any adjacent property to which the Contractor must gain access, in the performance of work,
or 10 reach a work area Owner agrees to be responsibie for, and to hold Contractor harmiless from, any damages resulting from the use of
adjacent propertylies) by Contractor.

(e) Coreection of any existing defects which are discovered and/or recognized during the course of the work. Contractor shall have no liab lity, or
responsibility for correction of any existing defects. Such defects as, but not fimited to, dry rot, structural defects, code violations, pre-existing
work by others, un-permitted work by others, drainage defacts, or other previously unknown defects.

{f) Current, active policy of insurance for the project property, which includes adequate coverage for Fire, Course of Construction, all Physical Loss
with Vandalism and Malicious Mischief, to cover a minimum of the total contract sum, prior to and during performance of this contract. If the
project is destroyed or damaged by an accident, disaster or calamity, or by theft or vandalism, all labor and materials supplied by Contractor in
reconstructing or restoring the project shall be paid for by Owner as extra work.

6. Delay: Contractor shall not be held responsible for any damage occasioned, or any added costs caused by delays resulting from work done by
Owner's other subcontractors or contractors, extra work, acts of owner(s), owner's agent(s) or tenants, including failure of owner to make timely
progress payments or payments for extra work, shortages of material, shortage of labor, inclement weather, Federal, state, county or regional
COVID 19 related shut-downs, fire, strike, war, governmental regulations, or any other contingencies unforeseen by Contractor or beyond
Contractor's reasonable control

7 Surplus Matenals and Salvage: Any surplus materials following completion of work are the property of Contractor, and will be remaved by the
same No credit is due Owner for any surpius materials because this contract is based upon completion of specified work. Any salvage resulting
from work under this contract is also the property of Contractor, and will be removed by the same.

8. Cleanup & Advertising: Upon completion of contract, following debris / surplus material removal wherever possible, Contractor will leave
premises in a neat, broom clean condition. Owner hereby grants to Contractor the right 1o display signs and advertise at the job site for the
period of time starting at the date of signing of this contract and continuing, uninterrupted until fourteen (14) days past the date the Jobis
completed, and payment in full has been made. Owner grants Contractor the right to publish the project street address on a “references- list
given to prospective customers

9. Unanticipated Conditions and Concealed damage: Expenses incurred because of unusual or unanticipated conditions shall be paid for by
owner as extra work as specified by written change order. Conditions such as, but not limited to, ground conditions that reguire fill or unusually
hard soil, rocky soil, or the presence or invasion of ground water. Contractor will inform Owner of any dry rot, or other deterioration or
unanticrpated condition which is concealed and is discovered during the course of the work, Contractor is not responsible for repair of any such
discovered deterioration or conditions, and repairs will only be done as extra work, at additional cost, as specified in a written change order.

10. Hazardous Substances: Owner understands that Contractor is not qualified as a Hazardous Material Handler or Inspector or as a Hazardous
Material Abatement contractor. Should any hazardous substances, as defined by the government, be found to be present on the premises, it is
the Owners’ responsibility to arrange and pay for abatement of same,

11. Right to Stop Work and to Withhold Payment on Labor and Materials: If any payment is not made to Contractor as per this contract,
Contractor shall have the right to stop work and keep the job idle until all past due progress payments are received. Contractor is further excused
by Owner from paying any material, equipment and/or labor suppliers or any subcontractors (hereinafter collectively called "suppliers*), during
the period that Owner is in arrears in making payments to Contractor for bills received during that same period. If these same “suppliers” make
demand upon Owner for payment, Owner may make such payment on behalf of Contractor and Contractor shall reimburse Owner for this
amount at such time that Owner becomes currant with Contractor for all past due payments. Owner is responsible to verify the true amounts owed
by Contractor to these same "suppliers", prior to making payment on beholf of Contractar, Owner shall not be entitled, under any circumstances, to
collect as reimbursement from Contractor, any amount greater than that exact amount actually and truly owed by Contractor to these same
“suppliers®, for work done or materials supplied on Owner's Job.

12. Collection: Owner agrees to pay all collection fees and charges including, but not limited to, all legal and attorney fees that result should
Owner default in payment of this contract. Overdue accounts are subject to-interest charged at 18% per annum or at the highest rate allowed by

aw, 00 ?R



fees, The court or arbitrator shall not be bound to award fees based on any set fee schedule, but shall if it so chooses, award the true amount of
all costs, expenses and attorney fees paid or incurred.

14. Arbitration of Disputes: Any controversy or claim arising out of, or relating to this proposal/contract, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by
arbitration in accordance with the applicable Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association which are in effect
at the time the demand for arbitration is filed. A judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction thereof. Any arbitration award shall be subject to correction and/or vacation for the reasons stated in the iaw. The arbitrator shall
award reasonable attorney's fees and expenses to the prevailing party. After being given due natice, should any party fail to appear at, or
Participate in, the arbitration proceedings, the arbitrator shali make an award based upon the evidence presented by the party who appears and
participates, notwithstanding Contractor's right to arbitrate. Contractor does not waive any of its lien rights.

NOTICE: By initiating in the space below you are agreeing to have any dispute arising out of the matters included in the “arbitration of disputes”
provision decided by neutral arbitration as provided by law, and you are giving up any rights you might possess, to have the dispute litigated in
a court of law, or jury trial. By initialing in the space below you are giving up your judicial rights to discovery and appeal, unless those rights are
specifically, included in the "arbitration of disputes” provision. If you refuse to submit to arbitration after agreeing to this provision, you may be
compelled to arbitrate under the authority of the applicable laws. Your agreement to this arbitration provision is voluntary.

We have read and understand the foregoing, and agree to submit disputes arising out of the matters included-in the "arbitration of disputes”
provision, to neutral arbitration,

| Agree to Arbitration;

{Initials of Owner)

| Agree to Arbitration:

{Initials of Owner)

Contractors are required by faw to be licensed and regulated by the Contractors State License Board, which has jurisdiction to investigate
complaints against contractors if a compiaint regarding a patent act, or omission, is filed within four years of the date of the alleged violation. A
complaint regarding a latent act or omission pertaining to structural defects must be filed within 10 years of the date of the alleged violation.
Any questions concerning a contractor may be referred to the Contractors' State License Board, P.O. Box 26000, Sacramento, CA, 95826.

Addendum A Exclusions:
Standard Conditions of Quotation

The following conditions are a part of the attached proposal (or as amended herein and initialed): WORK BY OTHERS

t The General Contactor shall obtain all permits, and as necessary. if any portion of our work or equipment encroaches on adjacent property or
City property. shall issue all required notices and obtain necessary permission and approvals to perform the work.

2. Suitable areas to stockpile and fabricate materials and store equipment are to be made available for our use at the jobsite.

3. General contractor shall furnish all knes, grades, layout, and surveys necessary for our work.

4. All special inspections of work and testing of materials is to be performed by others.

5. Handling and removal of all materials are a result of our operations including drill spoils, waste concrete, and grout, drilling fluid, etc.

6. Conflicting utilities are to be removed and relocated by others as required. Overhead power lines or obstructions which interfere with our
equipment and access are to be removed or relocated by others as required. Any potholing required is to be by others. Contacting USA is by
others. We will accept no liability for the damage to any underground utility, ducts, pipelines, conduit, etc. |

7. Access ramps and level breaches with adequate surfaces and slopes for track-mounted and rubber tire equipment shall be provided by others
at focations that will permit our access to the work. Mats, Planks, and maintenance of ramps are to be provided and maintained by others as

required. ﬂ ﬁ 24_



P

including but not limited to, removal shifting or drilling through such obstructions.

9 Removal of any shoring components and / or DE tensioning s excluded unless specifically included in our scope of work.

10. Site dewatering, pumping. and drainage to be performed by others so that our work may be done in the dry. Construction handrails,
barricades, flagmen, and other traffic control devices are excluded.

11 Mass excavation is to be performed by others including the removal of all material to be plane of the back face of the wall, General contractor
shall coordinate excavation with installation to prevent unsafe over-excavation and assure a continuous aperation.

12 We specifically exclude any

13: Demolition wark and any required bracing and/or shoning of the demolition work,

14. Effects of settlement from vibration due to heavy equipment is the responsibility of others, Vibration and settlement monitoring shall be by
others Establishment of moritoring po ats and monitoring for lateral displacement of installed components shall be performed by others during
the excavation process Readings shall be taken at locations and intervals specified and shall be reparted to MALONEY throughout the excavation
process.

15 As-built and record drawings are excluded

16. Extra cost associated with performing work in contaminated or hazardous s0il conditions are excluded.

17. No back charges shal! be accepted by MALONEY unless properly documented and approved by MALONEY.

18. Potable water within S0f t of dritling locations at 50 9pm and city pressure to be provided by others

19. If attendance at pre-job conference, training, or safety orientation is required, MALONEY should be reimbursed at the rate of $95 per man
hour plus expenses.

20. Cost of bonds are excluded,

21. Ali work not specifically mentioned i the “Scope of Work s excluded

Maloney Canstruction will schedule the wark upon receipt of the signed and initial acceptance of the contract,

We thank you for the opportunity to work together

Approval Deadline: Feb 12, 2025

I confirm that my action here represents my electronic signature and is binding.
Required clients

Bef Marin Keys Community Service Dist.

00 25



12 February 2025
(Revised 21 February 2025)

Mr. Vincent Lattanzio

Bel Marin Key Community Services District
4 Montego Key

Novato, CA 94949

Re: Revised Proposal to Prioritize Deficiency Repairs and Provide Associated Construction
Documentation for the Bel Main Keys Navigation Locks and Associated Marine
Infrastructure, Novato, CA

Dear Mr. Lattanzio:

Simpson Gumpertz & Heger Inc. (SGH) is pleased to submit this proposal to Bel Marin Keys

Community Services District (BMKCSD) to develop a Repair-Rrioritization-Rlar-and-asseciated

Repair Construction Package based on deficiencies identified in the 2024 SGH Condition
Assessment Report of the BMKCSD navigation locks and associated marine infrastructure in

Novato, California. This revised proposal supersedes all previous proposals for this work scope.

Changes are marked b derlining or:

This proposal is intended to provide the necessary engineering for the following:

. Provide structural engineering design services, including providing construction
documentation (Drawings & Specifications) necessary for contractor bidding,
permitting, and construction for the following BMKCSD marine infrastructure:

. North Lagoon Lock gates and supporting concrete basin
. North Lagoon Seawalls
. North Lagoon Flood Gates
. North South Lagoon Connectin vert
° South Lagoon Lock gates and supporting concrete basin
o South Lagoon Seawalls
. th Lagoon rflow
. Provide engineering servi o explore options for restoring the mechanical and

electrical operational capability of the North Lagoon Flood Gates.

SIMPSON GUMPERTZ & HEGER 1999 Harrison Street, Suite 2400, Oaldand, CA 94612 4154853700

00 °&



Mr. Vincent Lattanzio -2- 12 February 2025
(Revised 21 February 2025)

. Provide engineering services to explore the feasibility of increasing the height of the
existing North and South Lock Gates for additional flood mitigation capacity.

BASIS OF PROPOSAL

The following serves as a basis for this proposal:

. Email correspondence with Mr. Vincent Lattanzio, 14 February 2025.
° SGH presentation to BMKCSD Board, 21 November 2024,
) *Condition Assessment of the Bel Marin Keys Navigation Locks and Associated Marine

Infrastructure, Novato, CA,” prepared by Simpson Gumpertz & Heger Inc. (SGH), SGH
Project No. 247232, dated 16 November 2024.

. Telephone conversation with Mr. Vincent Lattanzio, 10 October 2024.
We understand BMKCSD wants to repair deficiencies found for their marine infrastructure

identified in the 2024 SGH Condition Assessment Report. Ferfunding-purpesesBMKCSD-alse

based-on o i+ 3 i arational-disruption: BMKCSD is interested in
restoring the Connecting Culvert between the two lagoons, enhancing the capacity of the South

Lagoon Overflow Pipes, and restoring the operational capability of the North Lagoon Flood
Gates. Additionally, BMKCSD would like to understand if the Lock Gates can be reasonably

lev. he level of the adjacent concret itional fl rotection. We further
understand that BMKCSD inten hire a hydrologist to undertake a study to identify potential
needs to reduce the risk of lagoon flooding and potential sea level rise issues.

SCOPE OF WORK

We propose the following specific work scope:

oc 77



Mr. Vincent Lattanzio -3- 12 February 2025
(Revised 21 February 2025)

2. Construction Documentation — SGH will conduct the necessary engineering to
develop a complete set of construction documents, drawings, and technical

specifications for installing the structural repairs for the following structures:

North Lagoon Lock gates and supporting concrete basin
North Lagoon Seawalls

North Lagoon Flood Gates

South Lagoon Lock gates and supporting concrete basin
South Lagoon Seawalls

All engineering work will be done in accordance with the 2022 California Building Code
(CBC). Drawings and technical specifications will be suitable for generating opinions of
construction costs for permitting, obtaining competitive contractor bids, and executing
the work. All drawings and speciftcations will be done in accordance with SGH's
formatting standard.

We assume BMKCSD is leading all permitting efforts for the work included in this task.

3. Construction Administration — For the repair work ri in Task 2, we have
assumed an 8-week construction window. Over this time, SGH will perform the
following tasks:

. Provide periodic structural observation during the structural portion of the
construction effort. This will consist of weekly site visits to observe the general
progress of construction at critical stages and to form an opinion as to the
extent to which the contractor is conforming to the design intent.

. Following each field observation, SGH will provide a structural field report
documenting our observations on the site, together with any recommendations
for corrective measures or alteration of the work in progress. This is not
intended to serve as Special Inspection services or as an alternative to services
normally provided by testing agencies.

o Review structural shop drawings for general conformity with the intent of the
contract plans and specifications. Such review does not indicate approval of
dimensions, quantities, coordination with other trades, or the contractor's work
methods, which are indicated thereon. This proposal includes the budget for
one iteration of shop drawing review only.

. Review contractor structural submittals other than shop drawings, including
review of product data for conformance with the construction document
requirements.

00 2%



Mr. Vincent Lattanzio -4 - 12 February 2025
(Revised 21 February 2025)

o Provide consultation to the contractor for the clarification of structural design
details, including response to RFls and provide structural bulletins as required to
clarify construction requirements.

. Coordinate with the owner’s project manager if an immediate field response to
construction issues is required.

. Review special inspection and testing reports prepared by the owner's Special
Inspection agency and testing laboratory under the specifications.

e Upon completion of the construction, SGH will submit a letter to agencies as

needed indicating the scope of services provided by us on the project and that,
insofar as permitted by our observation of the work, it has been satisfactorily
completed in accordance with our intent.

4, Connecting Culvert Design and Documentation — For this task, SGH assumes
BMKCSD will retain a hydrologist to assess the hydraulic needs of the overall lagoon

system, who will provide the n ary dimensions and flow r r the culvert

For scoping purposes, we assume a 36-in. diameter pipeline will be required at two

I i wn in our 21 November 2024 presentati he Board. The design
would also include outfall structures at each end of the pipelines. SGH will develop the
drawings and technical ifications suitabl ing opinions of construction
costs for permitting, obtaining competitive contractor bids, and executing the work. All

drawings and specifications will be done in accordance with SGH's formatting standard.

We assume BMKCSD is leading all permitting efforts to install the work included in this
task.

5. South Lagoon Overflow Design and Documentation — For this task, SGH assumes

BM i in a hydrologist to assess the h li of the overall lagoon
system, who will provide the necessary dimensions and flow rates for the overflow

i nnectin lagoons.

For scoping purposes, we assume three to four 18-in. diameter pipes will be required to
ier isting levee near the existing overflow. T ign would also include
riprap levee protection at each end of the pipes. SGH will develop the drawings and
technical ifications suitable f ing opinions of construction
ermittin inin iti actor bids, and executing the work. All drawin
and specifications will be done in accordance with SGH's formatting standard. We
assume BMKCSD is leading all permitting efforts to install the work included in this

task.

6. oon Flood Gates Operational Restoration Evaluation — SGH will
investigate the condition of the electrical ical system components th
operate the gates, assuming all structural repairs detailed in Task 2 ar

SGH will provide mechanical and electrical engineering services to determine what is



Mr. Vincent Lattanzio -5- 12 February 2025

(Revised 21 February 2025)

required to restore operations of the system and identify failed, damaged, or otherwise
inoperable equipment components. We assume all instrumentation and control
eguipment are functional and have excluded this system from our evaluation. SGH will

team up with an i mechanical subcontractor familiar with th

installations to assist with the evaluation, We will be on-site for one day and assume

BM i ide access to the gate structure.

B n our findi SGH will provide a list of ted mitigation actions necessa

1o restore mechanical and electrical operations. For each action, SGH will provide a
preliminary, rough, order-of-magnitude engineer's opinion of construction costs for

suggested repairs, T Vi our opinions of cost, SGH will consult wi al
contractors familiar with i hi e of worl ill provide a cost with a

proper contingency reflective of identified risk factors and the preliminary nature of the
suggested repair schemes,

Lock Gate Elevation - For both locks, SGH will investi asibility of elevatin

the lock gate outer panel to the top of the adjacent concrete basin to improve flood
resistance. SGH will perform the necessary evaluation of the existing gate to verify

overall adeguacy with th h hei nderstand th n

reinforcing. SGH assumes minimal strengthening of the lock gates will be required to
accomm he in ir height. Based on thi i GH will provide a
cost for BMKCSD to consider and will adjust the construction documentation_provided
in Task 2 accordingly. However, if more significant modifications are necessary, SGH will
consult BMKCSD before furthering the design and re-evaluate the next steps. SGH will

investigate each | n independently.

COMPENSATION

Task 1 has been eliminated from the scope at the direction of BMKCSD. We propose to provide

the indicated services in Task 2 for a fixed fee of $30,000. We suggest BMKCSD ish 3 time-
and-material 0 exceed US$76,000 for th i escribed in Tasks 2 through 7.

A breakdown of our fee is provided in Table 1.

Table 1 - Breakdown of Fixed Fee

Task Description Fee
2 | Construction Documentation $30,000 Fixed
3 | Construction Administration $25,000 T&M
4 Connecting Culvert Design and Documentation $12,000 T&M
5 | South Lagoon Overflow Design and Documentation $12,000 T&M
6 | North Lagoon Flood Gates Operational Evaluation $12,000 T&M
7 | Lock Gate Elevation $15,000 T&M

00

20



Mr. Vincent Lattanzio -6- 12 February 2025
(Revised 21 February 2025)

Our T&M budget amount represents our estimate of the cost to perform the scope of work
based on the information currently in our possession and includes a small amount for
contingencies. Our actual fees could be slightly more or less than the budget amount. However,
we will not bill more than the budget amount without your prior written consent. If additional
time and/or travel is required, this work can be performed for an additional cost on a time-and-
materials or other mutually agreed-upon basis.

We reserve the right to suspend services if payments fall substantially in arrears. This proposal is
valid for sixty days from the date of this proposal, after which time we reserve the right to
madify it to reflect changing economic conditions.

SCHEDULE AND DELIVERABLES

We are prepared to begin work upon receipt of a written notice-to-proceed (NTP). The following
are project deliverables with a corresponding schedule of completion:

2. Task 2 (Construction Documentation): After NTP, SGH will submit draft construction
drawings and necessary technical specifications within eight weeks ofreceipt-oftall

comments-on-the-RepairRrierity-Matrix. We will provide final construction documents

four weeks after all comments have been received on the Draft documents.

3. Tasks 4 (Connecting Culvert Design and Documentation) and 5 {South Lagoon

v Design an ation): After receivin rologist’s r GH will
it draft construction drawin ecessa hni ecifications within eigh
. We will provi inal construction documents f eeks after all ents

have been receiv n Draft docum

4, Task Lagoon Fl Operational Evaluation): ft report will
provided to BMKCSD within four weeks of the completion of all field work activities. A
final report will be i hree weeks after recej f all SD commen

5. Task 7 (Lock Gate Elevation): Four weeks after NTP, SGH will provide our draft

evaluation of the gates and suggestions needed for the project. We will provide the
final documents three weeks after all comments have been received on the Draft
submission, if ign change is approved, th drawin

within three w f BMKCSD authorization to proceed and finalization of

evaluation report.

00



Mr. Vincent Lattanzio -7- 12 February 2025
(Revised 21 February 2025)

LIMITATIONS

All drawings, specifications, reports, calculations, and other instruments of service prepared by
SGH under this contract may be used only for the specific project and purpose stated. SGH
cannot be responsible for the unauthorized use of these instruments of service on other
projects, for other purposes, or by parties other than those intended at the time of preparation.
Our services and the instruments of that service are prepared with that degree of care, skill, and
technical expertise ordinarily provided by reputable engineers practicing in this field at this time.
No other warranty, either expressed or implied is offered with regard to these services.

CLOSURE

Our proposed agreement consists of this proposal and the enclosed Contract Provisions and Fee
Schedule and Payment Terms. We hope you find the above proposal acceptable and look
forward to hearing from you and getting started on this effort. If acceptable, please sign and
return one copy of this letter.

Sincerely yours,
SIMPSON GUMPERTZ & HEGER INC.

Wida— W

Willialm M. Bruin, P.E.
Senior Principal
CA License No. C57867

Accepted: BEL MARIN KEYS COMMUNITY Signature:

SERVICES DISTRICT
Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

WMB/jdi (SF25-0000188r-WMB) 0101D25 010617-CP-2-CA

Encls.

00

32



SIMPSON GUMPERTZ & HEGER INC.
FEE SCHEDULE AND PAYMENT TERMS

Personnel Gategory Hourly Billing Rate
Senior Principal $360
Principal $350
Associate Principal $320 - $335
Project/Technical Director $280 - $300
Senior Technical Manager $265 - $275
Senior Project Manager $270 - $295
Senior Project Supervisor $250 — $285
Senior Consulting Architect/Engineer/Geologist $220 - $250
Consulting Architect/Engineer/Geologist $200- $220
Senior Project Consultant $235 - $240
Project Consultant || $200
Project Consultant $175-%$190
Associate Project Consultant $160
Technical Aide $115
Laboratory Technician $150 - $195
Graphics Specialist $150 — $255
BIM Technician $135-$205
Non-Technical $125-$145

Rates are in US dollars. Where ranges of hourly rates are shown for a single title, they reflect the varying rates of the
particular individuals with that title. An annual rate adjustment, based upon salary increases, will apply on 1 January
each year.

Form 0101D25 1 January 2025



SIMPSON GUMPERTZ & HEGER INC. (SGH)
CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. CONTRACT - Theas Contract Frovisions and the accompanying Proposal and Fee
Schedule consthute the antre Agrasmeni of the parties, and supersede sl prior
negotiations, agresments, and understandings with respect 1o the subject matter of this
Agresment. These Contract Provigions shall take precadence over any inconsistsncy or
confradictory provisions contained in any proposal, contract, purchase order, requisiion,
notics to procasd, or Tks document. The parties may only amend this Agresment by a
written document duly executad by both parties.

2. RIGHT OF ENTRY = When entry 1o property is required by the work, the Client agrees
to obtain lsgal right-of-eniry on the property.

3. DOCUMENTS - All reparts, notes, drawings, specifications, data, calcuiations, end
other documents prepared by SGH am instuments of SGH's service that shall remain
SGH's property. The Cliant agrees not fo use SGHgenerslad documents for marketing
purposes or for projects other than the project for which the documents were prepared by
SGH without SGH's prior written parmission.

Any reuse or disbursement b third parties without such express writlen permission or
projactspecific adaptation by SGH will be at tha Client's sole risk and without Habllity to
SGH or #s aubsidlaries, hdependent professional associales, subconsulitants, and
subcontractors. Accordingly, the Client shafl, i the fullest exient permitied by law, defend,
indermify, and hold harmiess SGH from and againgt any and all costs, expenses, fees,
losses, ciaima, demands, liabilities, sulls, actions, and damages whataoever arising out of or
reaulting from such unauthorized reuss or disbursement Any release or projectspeciic
adaptation by SGH will entite SGH to further compensation at raiss 1o ba agread upon by
the Client and SGH,

4. DISPOSAL OF SAMPLES - SGH will discard samplas upon compiation of the work
covered under this Agreement, unless the Client ihsiructs ctherwisa in writing.

8. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - The scope of 5GH's sarvices for this Agraement does
not include any respansibillly for datection, remediation, accidanial relesss, or services
relating to wasie, oll, asbestos, lead, or other hazardous materials, as defined by Federal,
State, and local laws or regulations.

8. CONSTRUCTION SERVICES — When construction-phase ssrvices are included in the
Agresment, SGH will provide perscnnel to evalate whether constuction is in genaral
accordance with the conatruction contract, but not to perform detalled obssrvations or
inspections of the work.

SGH Is not a guarantor or insurer of the contractors work; the confradior is solsly
responsible for the accuracy and adequacy of construction and for all other activities
performed by the contracior, including the means and methods of consruction: supesvision
of personnal and construction; confrol of machinery; false work, scaffokling, and ofher
lemporary construction alds; safely in, on, and sbout the job sle; and compliance with
OSHA and all oher spplicable regulations. SGHa evalation of he contraciors
performance will not includs review or cbservation of the adequacy of the contreciors safely
measures o of safety conditions on the project site nor of Contractor's means or methods of
construction,

7. STANDARD OF CARE - SGH and its subaidisries, Independent professional
associaies, subconsultants, and subcontraciors will exercise that degres of care and skill
ordinarily pracicad under aimilar circumstances by engineers and architects providing
similar services. The Client agrees that services provided by SGH will be rendemed without

any waranty, express or implied,

SGH shall exarcisa usual and cusiomary professional care in Hs afforts to comply with
codes, requiations, wa rules, ordinancas, and such other requirements In effect as of the
date of expaution of his Agmamant.

Tha Client agrees that SGH has besn engagad 1o provide technical professional senvices
only, and hat SGH does not owe a fiduciary responsibillty & the Client,

8. OPINION OF PROBABLE COSTS - When required as part of our work, SGHwill fumish
opinions of probable cost but doas not guarantes the accuracy of such estimates. Ophnions
of probable cast, financial ewluations, feasbility studles, economic analysas of allemate
solutions, and utiitarian congiderations of operations and mainisnance costs prepared by
SGH hemsunder will be made on the basls of SGH's experience and qualifications and will
reprasent SGH's judgment as an experisncad and qualifisd design professional. SGH doss
not have control over the cost of labor, material, equipment, or servicss fumished by others
or over marke! conditions or conivactors' methods of determining prices or performing the
work,

8. SUSPENSION OF WORK - The Client may, at any time, by writtsn notice, suspend
furher work by SGH. The Client shall remain Bable for, and shall promptly pay SGH for all
services rondered to the dais of suspension of services plus suspsnsion charges.
Suspension charges shall incluide the cost of assembiing documents, personne! and
equipment rescheduling or massignmant, and commitments maxde to others on the Clients
behalf. If afier ninety (60) deys the Client resumas SGH's work on the Project, SGH and the
Client shall renagotiate SGHa fes,

¥ paymant of invoices by the Client Is not mantained current, SGH may, upon written notics
to the Client, suspend further work until payments are brought current. The Client agresa ip
indemnify and holkd SGH harmieas from any claim or liability resulting from such suspension,

10. TERMINATION — The Client or SGH may terminate this Agreament for causs, axcept
only the Cliad mity erminate for convenience, The party initiating Wrmination shall =
notlly tha other party. The Chent shal compensats SGH for services parformad prior &
tarmination and for prior authorized commitments made by SGH on the Clisnt's behalf,

11. CHANGES OR DELAYS - Unless the accompanying Proposal provides otherwise, the
feas constiiuies SGHs estimats 1o perform the services required 10 compiats the
Project. Required services often are nat fully definabla in the initial planning; accardingly,
developments may dictale a change in the scope of services 1o be performed. Where this
occurs, changes in the Agresmernt shall be negotiated and an aquitabls adjustment shall be
made. In addition, cosis and schedule commitments shall be subject to renagotiation for
unreasonable delsys caused by the Client's failurs o provide specifisd facilties, drection, or
information.
OTOE1T- 2-CA)

CLIENT: BEL MARIN KEYS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

12.

13.

14,

15,

16.

FORCE MAJEURE - SGH will not be lisble to the Client for delays in parforming its
Servicss or for direct or indirect costs resulting from such delays that may result from kbor
sirlims, ricls, war, acis of govemmental authorities, axracrdinary weather conditions or
cther natural catastrophes, or any ofher cause beyond the rsasonsbls control or
conlemplation of ether pasty.

UABILITY - SGH will furnish approprisie insurance certificates for general and
profassicnal fisbliity upon request. The Client agreas that SGH's total Kability to the Client
and the tolal imbilily to the Cllent of SGHs principals, officers, agents, and emplovess, for
any and all injuries, claims, bsses, expanses, or damagas whatsoever, incuding atomey's
fees, arising out of or in any way relaied © the Projsct or this Contract fom any cause or
causes, incuding, but not imiled to, SGHs negligencs, errors, omissions, airict llabily,
breach of coniract, or breach of warranty shall not excesd SGH's ioial fee under his
Agreament or $50,000, whichever is greater. In no event shall S5GH be Hable to Cllent for
any indirect, incidental, spacial or consequential damages whatsoever (including but not
Bmited 1o kst profits or interruption of business) arising cut of or related © the servioes
provided under fhe Agresment.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST — This assignment may presently or in the futura involve
parties with potentially sdverse nsrests v hoss of SGHs adsting o fulure client
("Affaciod Pertiey” or “Affecied Party”). Prior 1o SGH's acosptance of this assignient, SGH
wiil make masonable atempts to identify any Aflacted Parliss basad on information SGH
has in its possession from the Client and any Affaciad Parties and SGH's ssarch of its
projact and propossl datebases. To the exdent that SGH identifies 8 ralationship with an
Affecind Parly, SGHwill inform tha Client az 1o the idently of such partias. Client agrees i
allow SGH to release to any Aflecind Parties e fact of SGH's erigagemsnt by the Cllent
and any other information required b evaluaie any patential conflict

SGH's ablily to inform tae Cliant of a rehtibnship with an Afleciad Party is limited by the
thoroughnesa and accuracy of the information provided & SGH by the Client and any
Affeciad Farties, and by SGH's Nmitations n ressanably and diligently discovering al
reistionships with Affecied Parties. Regardiess of SGHs melationship with an Affected
Party, and, provided such relationship with an Affected Party does not arise fom SGHs
willful disregand of & relationship with the Affected Party, SG3H thall be entitied % payment
for all services rendered 1o the date of discovery or nolica, whichaver occurs first, of a
relationship between SGH and an Affeced Party. SGH does not guaraniee that a
relationship between the Client and an Aftected Party, which may be perceived by the Client
as a confict, will not arise during the courss of an assignment o hereafter, SGH disclaims
responsibiiity for such occurrencea and to the fuBsst extent permitied by law, the Client
agrees fo waive any claim againat SGH arising out of any such actual or potential confiict-
related orcumences. Subssquent o the des of this Agreement, SGH will not be in a
position o gusrenty hat it can advise the Cllent of any fulure ABectad Partias or perceived
or acial confict croumstances that may arise, but will endeavor to notify Chent of such
situations.

INDEMNIFICATION ~ SGH shall, aubject to the limitation of lability contained in
Section 13, indemnify (but not defend) the Clisnt for any lbss or damage causad molely by
the professicnal negligence of SGH in performance of the services under this Agreement,

MISCELLANEOUS

Governing Law: The laws of the stats in which the Project is located shall govermn the
validily and interpretstion of this Agrasmeant.

Imvalld Terma: K any of these Contract Provisions shall be finally determined to be
invalit or unenforceable in whols or in past, the remaining provisions hereof shall remain n
full force and effect and be binding upon the parties. The parties agree to reform the
contract between them to replace any such invalid or unenforoashie provision with a valid
and enforcaable provision that comas as close as posshie to the intention of the stricken
provision.

SGH Ratiance: Unless otherwise specificaly indicated in writing, SGH shall be
sntitlad 10 rely, without Bability, on the accuracy and completansas of information provided
by the Clant, he Client's consulants and contractors, and Information from public records,
without the need for independent verification.

Copyright Infringsmant indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the
Cient agrees 1o defend, indemnify, and hold harmiess SGH from any and all clims,
damagas, sulls, causas of action, liabiities or costs, including ressonabls attomeys’ fees
and costs of defanss, arising out of or in any way connecied with SGH's use of documenis
or designs prapared by the CBant's consultants, that may be asserted agahstor hcurmed by
SGH

Cartifications: SGH shall not be required to aign any documents, no matter by whom
requasted, hat would result in SGH's having o certily, guaranty, or warmant the existence of
conditions that SGH cannot ascartain.

Payment: Invaices will be submitted periodically, end are dus end peayable upon
recsipt Unpaid bainces shall be subject to an addlional charge at he rate of 1-1/2% per
month from the date of invoice if he unpaid batance fs not paid within thity (30) days. The
Client shal reimburse SGH for all attomey's fees and costs related to colisction of overdue
payments.

Litigation: All costs and Isbor sssociated with compliance with any subpoena or
other official request for documents, for testimony in & cournt of aw (other than in connection
with expert witness services), o for any other purpase relating to work performed by SGH,
In connection with work performed for the Cllent, shal be paid by the Client as a dired
axpense (aclual cost plus 10%).

Taxes: Client shall, in addition to the other ameunts payable under this Agresment,
pay, on atimely basis, all salss, use, walus added or oher taxas, federal, state or ctherwise,
however designated (hereinafler "Tazs"), which are lavied or imposed by mason of the
fransactions contempiated by this Agresment or any of the Sarvices, axcept for taws on
SGH's net incoma. Cliant shall promptly pay SGH for any Taxes actually paid by SGH on
behalf of Client, or which are required 1o be cofisciad or paid by SGH. SGH may bill Cliant
seperately for such Toms

00 2



Schaaf & Wheeler 260 B MEE: Koyp Boulewt

CONSULTING CIVIL. ENGINEERS Novato, CA 94949
(415) 271-3117
rlee@swsv.com

PROPOSAL MEMO
VIA EMAIL
DATE: March 11, 2025
TO: Bel Marin Keys Community Service District
Attention: Vincent Lattanzio
FROM: Caitlin J. Tharp, PE, CFM

Robin J. Lee, PE, CFM
SUBJECT:  Bel Marin Keys Hydrologic Study and Climate Change Resilience
Recommendations

Schaaf & Wheeler is providing you with this scope and fee to perform hydrologic and hydraulic
medeling of the Bel Marin Keys Community Service District (CSD}) neighborhoods inciusive of
the North and South Lagoons, the overfiow spill area on the South Lagoon, Novato Creek, and
Pacheco Creek.

Figure 1 shows the limit of the study. It shouid be noted that this is a large, hydraulically
connected area and requires the study of hydraulic structures, open channels, spiliways,
detention basins (Jagoons and ponds) all under a variety of rainfall and tidal events. This scope
is written in as a phased approach, understanding that costs might be prohibitive to do a
comprehensive analysis at this time. In addition, there are ongoing projects with BMK Unit V
and Highway 37 that alsc might have ongoing studies and designs.

[ |

Figure 1. Study Area

00

35



To: BMK CSD March 11, 2025

e———e e ———— e Y

Our work will be to primarily look at optimizing the ability to release water from both the North
and South lagoons through the use of the current locks, but aiso additional mechanisms such as
the culvert connector pipe that has not been used, north lagoon sluice gates, and the high flow
spill from the South lagoon to the overflow area.

Further analysis can look into the ability to use Pacheco Pond or surrounding low-lying
agricultural lands to take advantage of the overall floodplain area that surrounds the BMK
residents.

While this proposal aims to look at resilience needs to mitigate impacts of future rising tides, the
majority of the residents within Bal Marin Keys are already in the FEMA effective mapped
floodplain. This means that during a 100-yr (or the 1% chance of occurrence every year) tidal
event, both lagoons are filled with water.

Figure 2. Study Area and FEMA Floodplain

This proposal can look at flood mitigation strategies, however, outboard protection in the form of
levees and walls will need to be assumed. Otherwise during large storm events and high tides,
the lagoons (which act as detention facilities) are all filled with water and do not provide any
form of detention.

Task 1: Data Collection/Review

Schaaf & Wheeler will collect relevant data from the CSD including as-built information of the
lock systems, bathymetric surveys, as-built information of the connecting culvert, North Marin
Water District Stafford release data, flushing and flushing information. Schaaf & Wheeler
already has the County’s LIDAR (topographical data) from 2020 and storm drain pipe
information from the County. In addition, Schaaf & Wheeler has some hydraulic models of the
Novato Creek used for other projects and will reach out the Marin County Flood Control to see if
there have been any further updates to the previous studies.

“
Schaaf & Wheeler 2

00 38




To: BMK CSD March 11, 2025

= .. e

Schaaf & Wheeler will also reach out to engineers on the Highway 37 and the BMK V
restoration projects to see if any models have been developed for those projects. This task
include one (1) in person meeting to review the data received and discuss project objectives.

Schaaf & Wheeler will summarize the relevant data collected and any further needs in a brief
memo.

Task 2: Level Sensing {optional)

Schaaf & Wheeler will deploy a level sensor in the north lagoon and south lagoon at the locks
on the lagoon side. These sensors will provide Schaaf & Wheeler with detailed leve! information
as it pertains to flushing to determine how quickly water can be released at different tide
elevations. Schaaf & Wheeler will rely on the County deployed level sensor that is at the mouth
or Novato Creek for the tide elevations. Sensors will also be deployed during the wet season
(Oct-March) to aid in the calibration of the hydrologic model.

Staff will need to provide detailed information about lock opening and closing to line up with
level sensor data to better understand the ability to release water from each lagoon at a variety
of tidal elevations.

A brief tech memo will be provided with data coliected and summarization of the flushing and
storm events.

Task 3: Hydrologic and Hydraulic Modeling of Lagoons

Schaaf & Wheeler will prepare a hydrologic model in HEC-HMS that analyzes the volumes of
runoff into the lagoons during storm events. These flows will be brought into a HEC-RAS
hydraulic model to analyze the rise in water surface elevation of the lagoons based on an inch
of precipitation. This will allow CSD staff to better prepare for storm events based on predicted
inches of rainfall.

This HEC-RAS model will be used to determine the balance of volumes between the North and
South lagoons and whether the cuivert connecting pipe should be rehabilitated to allow water to
flow from the North Lagoon into the South lagoon and into the overflow spill area.

Recommendations will be made based on the model to determine the feasibility of moving water
from the North lagoon to the South lagoon and for the size of the culverts into the overflow area
that is southeast of the South Lagoon.

Task 4: Preliminary Novato Creek Hydraulic Modeling

Schaaf & Wheeler will create a two-dimensional (2D) model of Novato Creek from Highway 101
to the mouth of the Petaluma River. This model will be used to develop a high-level outer
protection measure that protects the community from both tidal flooding and riverine flooding.
This model will be used to evaluate future resilience by iooking at climate change impacts to
precipitation and sea level rise. This study is meant to be a starting point for conversations with
Marin County Flood Control and to attract grant funding.

h
Schaaf & Wheeler 3

00

o



To: BMK CSD March 11, 2025
ﬁ

This model will focus on up to 10-yr design storm event which is readily used to design drainage
infrastructure throughout the Bay Area and Iook at a range of tidal boundary conditions from the
mean higher high water (MHHW) and the 100-yr tidal boundary conditions.

This task will be limited to 10 scenarios to be decided upon by the CSD, however, potential
solutions will only be conceptually designed to one selected scenario. Some suggested
scenarios are as follows:

¢ 100yr Creek with MHHW (FEMA standard)
¢ 10yr Creek with MHHW (typical Bay Area design standard)
e 10yr Creek with King Tide

¢ Stafford release and 10yr storm event (this is pending data being available from North
Marin Water District)

¢ Mid Century Climate Change 10yr, MHHW
¢ End of Century Climate Change 10yr, MHHW
Task 5: Recommendations

Schaaf & Wheeler will prepare a brief tech memo describing recommendations for the near term
and long term. The near-term solutions will primarily focus on flushing and optimizing the way
water is moved between the lagoons and the creek.

The long-term solutions will focus on the larger storm events, flood protection and climate
change.

Task 6: Coordination and Project Management

Schaaf & Wheeler will be made available to the BMK CSD throughout this project via email and
telephone. in addition, Schaaf & Wheeler will be available to attend one (1) Measure G meeting
and up to two (2) CSD board meetings in person. This scope aiso includes one (1) meeting with
County Flood Control District to present results and hopefully attract more funding from Flood
Control to continue to hydraulic modeling effort in more detail.

Schedule and Fee

Tasks 3 and 4 are anticipated to take 12 weeks after receipt of all of the data under Task 1.
Task 5 will take 2 weeks after tasks 3 and 4 are completed. Overall, we estimate this work to
take approximately 4 to 5 months assuming that no level sensing is conducted.

Schaaf & Wheeler proposes to complete this work on a time and materials basis for a fee not to
exceed $54,130 without level sensing. Work will be billed in accordance with our 2025 charge
rate (attached). Standard provisions dated April, 2017 (attached) apply. If you have any
questions regarding this scope and budget, do not hesitate to contact me at 415-271-3117 or

rlee@swsy.com.

Schaaf & Wheeler 4
00



To: BMK CSD March 11, 2025
S e ——— . T WL A

Table 1 - Project Fee

Fee Proposal

Hourly Rates

Data Collection/Reniew

Level Sensing

H&H Modeling of Lagoons

H&H Modeling of Nowato Creek
Recommendations

Coordination and Project Management

Best regards,
SCHAAF & WHEELER

(AiHley?

Caitlin J. Tharp, PE
Vice President
RCE 76810

| DO HEREBY AUTHORIZE SCHAAF & WHEELER TO PROCEED FORWARD WITH THE
EXECUTION OF THIS SCOPE OF WORK AS DESCRIBED HEREIN.

Name, Title Date

Schaaf & Wheeler
00



Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS
4699 Old Ironsides Dr., Suite 350
Santa Clara, CA 95054-1860
408-246-4848
Fax 408-246-5624

Standard Provisions
April 2017

Conditions set forth below are incorporated as part of this Agreement. These Standard Provisions and
the accompanying proposal constitute the full and complete Agreement between the parties and may be
changed, amended, added to, superseded, or waived only if both parties specifically agree in writing to
such amendment of the Agreement. In the event of any inconsistency between these Standard Provisions
and any proposal, contract, purchase order, requisition, notice to proceed, or like document, these
Standard Provisions shall govern.

1. PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS OF CARE - Schaaf & Wheeler, its employees, subconsultants, and
subcontractors (hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT") shall perform its services under this
Agreement in accordance with the degree of care and skill ordinarily practiced at the same point in
time and under similar circumstances by professionals providing similar services. No other warranty,
express or implied, shall apply to the services performed by CONSULTANT.

2. INDEMNITY - CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless CLIENT (including its officers
and employees) against claims, losses, damages, liabilities (including the reimbursement of
reasonable attorney's fees), and liability for injury or harm to persons or property to the extent caused
by the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT for professional services
performed under this Agreement. The duty to defend obligation of the CONSULTANT shall be
limited to the proportionate percentage of any claim arising directly from the services performed by
the CONSULTANT under this Agreement.

3. FORCE MAJEURE - Neither party shall be deemed in default of this Agreement to the extent that
any delay or failure in the performance of its obligations results from any cause beyond its reasonable
control and without its negligence.

4. DISPUTE RESOLUTION - CLIENT and CONSULTANT agree that they shall first submit any and all
unsettled claims, counterclaims, disputes, and other matters in question between them arising out of
or relating to this Agreement to non-binding mediation in accordance with the Construction Industry
Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association, effective as of the date of this agreement.
This provision shall survive completion or termination of this Agreement; however, neither party
shall seek mediation of any claim or dispute arising out of this Agreement beyond the period of time
that would bar the initiation of legal proceedings to litigate such claim or dispute under the
applicable law.

5. APPLICABLE LAWS - CONSULTANT shall perform its services in accordance with the laws, rules,
regulations, and codes that are applicable to the project and in force at the time of the completion of
the documents.

6. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - The scope of CONSULTANT's services for this Agreement does not
include any responsibility for detection, remediation, accidental release, or services relating to waste,
oil, asbestos, lead, or other hazardous materials, as defined by Federal, State, and local laws or
regulations.

GO

1

-



Standard Provisions Schaaf & Wheeler
April 2017 Page 2

7.

10.

11.

12

13.

14.

RIGHT OF ENTRY - When entry to property is required for the CONSULTANT to perform its
services, the CLIENT agrees to obtain legal right-of-entry on the property.

RELIANCE ON INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHERS - CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely,
without liability, on the accuracy and completeness of any and all information provided by CLIENT,
CLIENT's consultants and contractors, and information from public records, without the need for
independent verification.

THIRD PARTIES - Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with,
Or a cause of action in favor of, a third party against either the CLIENT or CONSULTANT.
CONSULTANT's services hereunder are being performed solely for the benefit of the CLIENT, and
no other entity shall have any claim against CONSULTANT because of this Agreement or
CONSULTANT's performance of services hereunder.

OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS - The CLIENT agrees not to use CONSULTANT-generated
documents for marketing purposes, for projects other than the project for which the documents were
prepared by CONSULTANT, or for future modifications to this project, without CONSULTANT's
express written permission. Any reuse or distribution to third parties without such express written
permission or project-specific adaptation by CONSULTANT will be at the CLIENTs sole risk and
without liability to CONSULTANT or its employees, independent professional associates,
subconsultants, and subcontractors. CLIENT shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, defend,
indemnify, and hold harmless CONSULTANT from and against any and all costs, expenses, fees,
losses, claims, demands, liabilities, suits, actions, and damages whatsoever arising out of or resulting
from such unauthorized reuse or distribution,

SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF CONTRACT - CLIENT may suspend or terminate this
Agreement with seven days prior written notice to CONSULTANT for convenience or cause.
CONSULTANT may terminate this Agreement for cause with seven days prior written notice to
CLIENT. Failure of CLIENT to make payments when due shall be cause for suspension of services,
or, ultimately, termination, unless and until CONSULTANT has been paid in full all amounts due for
services, expenses, and other related charges.

SITE VISITS - In the event that CONSULTANT’s scope of services shall include site visits during the
construction phase, CONSULTANT shall be serving only in the capacity as a consultant to advise
CLIENT on issues involving progress and general design compliance. CONSULTANT does not
assume any responsibility for the quality, sequences, techniques, or timeliness of any contractor’s
worlk, job site safety, continuous onsite inspections, or any issues that fall outside of the
CONSULTANT's scope of services as defined herein.

GOVERNING LAWS - The laws of the state of California shall govern the validity and interpretation
of the Agreement.

INSURANCE - During the performance of work covered by this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall
maintain the following insurance coverage:

a} Workers' Compensation Statutory
b) Commercial General Liability $2,000,000 each occurrence; $4,000,000 aggregate
(includes Products & Completed
Operations)
¢} Automobile Liability $1,000,000 combined single limit each accident
d) Professional Liability $5,000,000 each claim; $5,000,000 aggregate

00



Standard Provisions Schaaf & Wheeler
April 2017 Page 3

15. PREVAILING WAGE OBLIGATIONS - The Client shall notify Schaaf & Wheeler in writing if the
Work contemplated by this Agreement constitutes a “public work” under any and all federal, state
and/or local prevailing wage laws, and/or living wage laws, including but not limited to the Davis-Bacon
Act and the provisions of California Labor Code §§ 1720 et seq. In the event that Schaaf & Wheeler must
adhere to federal, state and/or local prevailing wage obligations for the Work performed, the Client shall
notify and provide Schaaf & Wheeler with any and all applicable prevailing wage determinations prior
to the Work to being performed under this Agreement. Any prevailing wage obligations might affect the
payment terms contemplated by this Agreement and thus constitute a changed condition mandating
renegotiation and/or termination of this Agreement. The Client understands and agrees that Schaaf &
Wheeler will rely on the representations made by the Client with regard to prevailing wage obligations
and the Client agrees to indemnify Schaaf & Wheeler, its officers, directors, employees, agents and/or
subcontractors against any and all claims, liabilities, suits, demands, losses, costs and expenses, including
but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and legal costs, arising from Schaaf & Wheeler's reliance
upon the Client’s representations regarding prevailing wage obligations.

00 4°



Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS

4699 Old Ironsides Dr., Suite 350
Santa Clara, CA 95054-1860
408-246-4848

Hourly Charge Rate Schedule

Personnel Charges

Charges for personnel engaged in professional and/or technical work are based on the actual hours
directly chargeable to the project.

Current rates by classification are listed below:

Classification Rate/Hr
Principal Project Manager $305
Senior Project Manager $280
Senior Engineer $255
Associate Engineer $225
Assistant Engineer $205
Junior Engineer $190
Designer $180
GIS Analyst $180
Technician $165
Engineering Trainee $140

Litigation Charges

Court or deposition time as an expert witness is charged at $500 per hour.

Materials and Services

Subcontractors, special equipment, outside reproduction, data processing, computer services, etc.,
will be charged at 1.10 times cost.

Effective 1/1/25

G0

Y8

W



From: Robin Lee <HipeBswsy.com>
Date: March 12, 2025 at 3:17:23 PM PDT

To: "Vincent P. Lattanzio" <wlaflanzio@tmkcsd. us>
Ce: Vincent Lattanzio <yint¢@carducdiagsoeiaida.com>, Brian Clark <hclatk@timkese.us>, Lisa

Lue <lige@bimkcad.us>, Steve Nash <snasti®tmkead s>
Subject: RE: Bel Marin Keys Hydrologic Study and Sea Level Rise Analyses

I reached out to County H&H guy today and they are already doing some 2D modeling of Novato
Creek area for the highway 37 project. Basicalty - they took a model that S&W prepared a while ago
and have made updates to the 2019 LIDAR. The model intention is not flood control for BMK and it
doesn’t appear that they are making recommendations for ftood protection, but it certainly is an
effort that S&W can build upon.

It might make sense to focus on the lagoon hydrology for now, and wait on the full Novato Creek
modeling once the County’s model is avaitable. Will save some effort on the CSD's part. | don't
know exactly how much effort saved until | get eyes on the model and review it in detait.

Robin J. Lee, PE, CFM £Senior PM

Schaaf and Wheeler Consutting Civi Engneers
250 Bel Marin Keys, Bldg A, Suite 205
Novato, CA 94949

C: 415.20-3117; tigeianay com

Sants Clara » San Fraocisco « Sants Rosa - Salinas « Novato » Trockee

00 44



TO: MEASURE G OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
FROM: TERRY FRIESEN, 2/27/2025

PRIORITIZATION OF MEASURE G REPAIRS:

SGH has completed a $49,500 inspection of BMK’s North and South locks, North Lagoon flushing gates,
and South Lagoon overflow structure. Below is SGH’s CONDITION ASSESSMENT SUMMARY

Table 1: Structure inspection Condition Assessment Rating (ICAR) Summary

Marine Structure Component cei‘:‘ﬁ?&%ﬁqﬁung
Concrete Sa'ilsfs&ow
North Lock South Gates Poor
North Gates Fair
Concrete Fair
North Lock Seawall = i
Piles Fair
North Lagoon Flood Gates - Critical
Concrete Satisfactory
South Lock South Gates Poor
North Gates Satisfactory
South Lock Seawall CorTcrete mm =
Piles Fair
Connectir_ng Culvert : N/A

Based on reviewing SGH's preliminary and final report, here are my thoughts on prioritization of
maintanance of BMK lagoon infrastructure:

1. FABRICATE AND INSTALL STOP LOGS FOR THE NORTH LAGOON RADIAL FLUSHING
GATES: These are failing structurally and could be carried away leaving the North Lagoon subject to
the full tidalrange. SGH labeled these CRITICAL. We should instail stop togs to dam these off before
the gates fail. Bill Bruin of SGH suggested that stop logs can be used to permanently or temporarily
dam these gates. We should notdelay in installing stop logs. Repairs or replacement of the flushing
gates can wait. | will guess that stop logs will cost roughly $350,000.

00 45



2. OBTAIN CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS AND CONSTRUCTION SUPERVISION: SGH has quoted the

following:
Table 1 - Breakdown of Fixed Fee
Task Description Fee
1 Repair Priority $8,000 Fixed
2 Construction Documentation $30,000 Fixed
3 Construction Administration $25,000 T&M
4 North Lock Gate Elevation $15,000 Fixed

We can determine the repair priority ourselves. We do need the CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTION
{construction drawings and specifications) $30,000. itwill also be useful to have professional
Construction Administration interface with contractors, check the quality of work, and answer
questions as they arise... $25,000. We will need Construction Drawings for raising both the North
and South lock gates... $15,000. TOTAL SGH FEE ESTIMATE: $70,000

REPAIR THE SOUTH LOCK: SGH CONDITION RATING= POOR. The locks are critical for three
functions. They maintain a constant water level in the lagoons. If the locks break or failin the open
position, the lagoons will be subject to full tida! range. Athigh tides, yards will be flooded,
particularly in the South Lagoon because of lower lagoon design elevation. At low tides, boats and
docks will be sitting on the bottom. The locks are necessary for navigation. The locks provide
flushing. As a result, maintenance of the locks isn't an option...itis a critical top priority.

o REPAIRTHE SOUTH LOCK: Condition of lagoon side gates is rated POOR by SGH. Repair
gates, sandblast, add coating, and add sacrificial anodes. SGH indicates this lock has
highest repair cost due to extent of corrosion damage.

Liftech noted that the hydraulic system of the South lock is in poorer condition than at the
North lock. It has a persistent leak and needs refurbishing. One gate does not open fully.
The electrical control system has electrical safety/code defects, exposed wiring/brittle
insulation, failing control system com ponents that are obsolete and can’t be replaced, and
the position sensors need to be replaced. The present control system should be replaced
with a simple Progammable Logic Controller.

o STOPLOGS: The stop logs forthe South Lagoon Lock are already on hand. The work on
this lock can begin as soon as we select a contractor and get drawings and specifications
for the work.



Current South Lagoon lock {lagoon side) condition....February 24, 2025 photos by TVF:

The framework for the South lagoon-side lock is so heavily rusted that holes areappearing in these large

beams. Thereis concemn that the actuator force required to open and ctose these locks willtear a rusted
section out of these beams, leaving the lock inoperable.

00 Z7



— e ——




o RAISE THE SOUTH LOCK GATES FOR FLOOD PROTECTION: SGH estimated that raising the
South Lock gates to top of concrete will cost $62,500. Raising the gates in conjunction with the
Lock Gates repairs will save the community a LOT of money compared to doing these
improvements at a later date.

o SEAWALL REPAIR AT SOUTH LOCK: Since the stes! South lock gates will need sandblasting,
coating, and installation of sacrificial anodes, it will be cost effective to do this same
maintenance to the small amount of steel seawall at the South Lock. SGH cost estimate: $5,825

¢ TOTAL COST OF SOUTH LOCK REPAIRS

e

0 0O 0 0 0 O

Repair lock gates, sandblast, coat, repair cancrete, raise lock gates = $1,102,426
Sandblast and coat South seawall = $5,825

Repairfrenew electrical control system and hydraulic system= $1 87,600/2= $93,800
SUBTOTAL: $1,202,051

Mobilization at 5%: $60,102

Contingencyat 10%: $120,205

TOTAL SOUTH LOCK AND SEAWALL REPAIRS ESTIMATE: $1,382,358

4. REPAIRTHENORTHLOCK: SGH CONDITION RATING OF LAGOON-SIDE GATES = POOR BMK's
need for the North Lock is the same as the South Lock. The North lock is in slightly better condition
from a comosion point of view. The hydraulics atthe North Lock are in better condition. The
electrical and control system at the North lock needs the same repair/replacement as at the South

lock.

o

FABRICATE STOP LOGS: Wehave a quote by Svendsen Bay Marine to build one as a test
case for $9000 and to build all the stop logs for the North Lock for $110,000. SGH provided
PE approval of design and drawings.

REPAIR THE NORTH LOCK: Condition of lagoon side gates is rated POOR by SGH.
Replace lock gate structural members and gatefacings as needed. Sandblastand coat
steel components. Refurbish the hydraulic system. The electrical control system has
elactrical safety/code defects, exposed wiring/brittle insulation, failing control system
components that are obsolete and can't be replaced, and the position sensors need to be
replaced. The control system should be replaced with a simple Progammable Logic
Controller.

RAISE THE NORTH LOCK GATES FOR FLOOD PROTECTION: SGH estimated that raising
the North Lock gates to top of concrate will cost $1 50,000. Raising thegates in conjunction
with the Lock Gates repairs will save the community a LOT of money compared to doing
these improvements at a later date.

SEAWALL REPAIR AT NORTH LOCK: Since the steel North lock gates will need
sandblasting, coating, and installation of sacrificial anodes, it will be cost effective to do

060 29



this same maintenance to the extensive steel seawall at the North Lock. SGH cost
estimate: $14,446
o TOTAL COST OF NORTH LOCK REPAIRS
» Fabricate stop logs= $119,000
* Repairlock gates, sandblast, coat, repair concrete, raise lock gates = $685,320
» Sandblast and coat North seawall = $14,446
* Repair/renew electrical control system and hydraulic system= $187,600/2= $93,800
* SUBTOTAL: $912,566
* Mobilization at5%: $45,628
« Contingencyat 10%: $91,257
» TOTAL NORTH LOCK AND SEAWALL REPAIRS ESTIMATE: $1,049,451

SUMMARY OF TOP PRIORITY PROJECTS
1. FABRICATE AND INSTALL STOP LOGS FOR THE NORTH LAGOON RADIAL FLUSHING GATES:

Guestimate by TVF, $350,000
2. SGH CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS AND CONSTRUCTION SUPERVISION: $70,000
3. REPAIRTHE SOUTH LOCK: $1,382,358
4. REPAIR THE NORTH LOCK: $1,049,451
5. TOTAL TOP PRIORITY PROJECTS: $2,851,709

MEASURE G FUNDS AVAILABILITY:

o FEB, 28, 2025; We currentty have $614,461

o DEC, 2025: Another $631,800 should become available

o Annually: About$1,278,000

o Funds for all top priority projects above will be available about mid-2027

OTHER MEASURE G PROJECTS

The above critical work will likely take all of our available Measure G funds in 2025-2027 and keep us very
busy with monitoring and facilitating alt the above work. As a result, at this time there Is little need for the
Measure G Committes or CSD Board to decide what and when regarding the following projects. We can
consider these later:

* REPLACING FLUSHING RADIAL GATE(S) AT NORTH LOCK: Atthis point, Brian Clark is of the
opinion that the large sliding gate on one of the 3 radial gates is not effective in flushing because
he feels it does not increase the flow rate, dueto flow interference. We will measure flow rates
with and without this sliding gate open. Openingthis gate for flushing does push a large amountof

co 50



sadiment into the Creek. So further study is appropriate before we decide whether to rebuild one
ormorae of these gates. The stoplogs provided as top priority will likely last for decades

* INCREASING SOUTH LAGOON OVERFLOW STRUCTURE FLOW CAPACITY: Atthis point,
lowering the South Lagoon for the winter and before and after storms seems to provide adequate
control of South Lagoon water level...and has for almost 40 years. We can waitfor more
experience and consider this item after the critical work abova is completed

¢ RAISING LOW PORTION OF THE SOUTH LAGOON LEVEE: This can be scheduled when
adequate funds are again available.

e RECONSTRUCT THE CULVERT CONNECTING NORTH AND SOUTH LAGOONS: This has not
been in service nor needed for about 45 years, so there does not appear to be any critical need.
This can be reconsidered as more experience with North Lagoon water level maintenance is
acquired

TIMING: Ideally, it would be nice if the lock work could be done in March-April or October-November so
itwould minimize impact on the summer boating. Repairing the locks involves putting in stop logs and
taking the locks out of service for 1 or 2 months. Repairing the seawalls at both locks probably requires
dropping the lagoon water level by 2 feet.

Bestregards,

Terry Friesen, PE

termytriesenl @outinok.com
415 847 8545

ADDENDUM

SGH COST ESTIMATE OF CONSTRUCTION COSTS.... NOV. 16, 2024

00 51



Table 2: Engineer’s Opinion of Construction Cost

Ty T P—— —_——

quipmentl.ator;

5 He.m [Sed! Unlimited inc. No. 3658 57 - m

Zinc 3nodes - replace

2.3

[Crew 1o Instatt Seats and Anodas

28

¢ datariorated sections of stecl mambers abovwy waterling
Clean and recoat corrodad steet memnbers above waterling

$111.372

Raise FES 1o T3P ol concrets

$150.000

l- lSld!Ull!lmlt&dfnc No. m.‘i‘!-IWQ

3.2

Zine anodes - replace

2.3 |GCrewtoinstsl Seals and Anodes 10
3.4 |Replace detetioraled sections of steel members above watarting 3500{
3.5 |Cloan and recoat exlsting corroded stoel members above watcrlng s10|
38 {Concrata repalt - lia spalied cylindar padestals - - 0 teindorting 1
3.7 |Ralse gates to tap of concrate 250
4.1  [Conceety repalr - dection - no s 2 LF o] $196 $196
42 [Sheetpls ropai - claan ond recost top 36° on cresk Lide s $5 $14,250) $14.250
§.1  iSheatple repalr - clean and recoat top 30° on creek side 25 |4 825 $5. 35
LS [
i :

.2 [inkind lzalacunento!all steel members - Maiesiats. fabeication off-sde L8s $250.500]
63 |install now gates 1 EA $175.000 3175, $175,000]
84 [Concrute rapair - pateh CCS_ no eindorcing 4 sF $675 £2 700 $2.100)

Som lm 2t'talm|andm¥n .

7.2 |New South Levee overflows 1 EA $50,000 $50,000]
|
81 |Rebulld/r hydrautic a3 8 EA $6,000 $48,000
82 1 2l and ieplacement 8] EA $1.200] $9,600] $9.500
_ 83 |Hydrautic system Improvements and serviciag 2l EA $25.000 $50,000 $50,
8.4 [Bectical improvertents 2 & $40.000 $80, 380,
Subitotal (Total Direct Cosl) 3,707,517
REFERENCES:

¢ “Condition Assessment of the Bel Marin Keys Navigation Locks and Associated Marine
Infrastructure, Novato, CA,” prepared by Simpson Gumpertz & Heger Inc. (SGH), SGH Project No.

247232, dated 16 November 2024

o “INSPECTION AND CONDITION SURVEY OF MARINE INFRASTRUCTURE, PRELIMARY REPORT”, by

SGH, 18 SEP 2024

00 52



* “Proposalto Prioritize Deficiency Repairs and Provide Associsted Construction Documentation

for the Bel Main Keys Navigation Locks and Associated Marine Infrastructure, Novato, CA*.... By
SGH, 2/12/202

Below is SGH's quote for the above item. | suggest we eliminate the $8000 PRIORITIZATION STUDY

and make the prioritization decisions ourselves based on available funding and the need for repairs as

already indicated in SGH’s final report of November, 16, 2024.

COMPENSATION

We propose to provide the indicated services in Tasks 1, 2 and 4 for a fixed fee of $53,000. We
suggest BMKCSD establish a time-and-materials budget, not to exceed US$25,000 for the
construction support services described in Task 3. A breakdown of our fee is provided in Table 3

Table 1 . Breakdown of Fixed Fee
Task Description Fee
1 Repair Proaty $8.000 Frxed
2 Construction Documentation $30,000 Fixed
3 Construction Administration $25.000 T&M
4 North Lock Gate Elevation $15,000 Fixed

Our T&M budget amount represents our estimate of the cost to perform the scope of work
based on the information currently in our possession and includes a smafl amount for
contingencies. Our actual fees could be slightly more or less than the budget amount. However,
we will not bifl more than the budget amount without your prior written consent. If additional
time and/or travel is required, this work can be performed for an additional cost on a time-and-
materials or other mutuafly agreed-upon basis.

00



Hello neighbors, welcome to the BMK Parks & Open Spaces Resident Survaey!

Your BMK CSD Board & Parks Committee is dedicated to maintaining and refreshing the parks and open spaces throughout

Q R our community while ensunng access for all residents.
We are interested in hearing your thoughts on how you use the parksfopen spaces and what your priorities are as we look 1o
C 0 D E maintain and update them using the Measure A funds that are set aside for park-use only.
Its preferred that you fill this out online by scanning the QR code, but you can also fill this sheet out physically and return to

the CSD Office by dropping off, mailing, or email. You can expect to spend 5-10 minutes and please fill out only 1 per person,
H E R E if you need additional hard copies of the survey they can be found at the CSD office. We very much appreciate your time
and feadback|

Warmly, BMKCSD Board + Parks & Open Spaces Commitiee

Name:

Physical Address:
Email Address:
Phone Number:

What is your age group?
18-34

35-54

55-74

75+

How many children under 18 reside in your household or visit your home and utilize BMK parks? Would they like to provide Input as well?
Please write in answers below

How often do you visit the following BMK Parks/Open Spaces?
Never Rarely Yeardy Monthly Weekly Daily Comments

Bahama Park
Caribe Isle N Park
Cavalla Cay Park
Del Oro Park
Hudson Park
Montego Park
Sunset Park
South Levee Trail

Keeping in mind that funds are limited, what amenities are you most interested In?

Not Somewnhat Very
Interested Interested Interested Comments

Picnic Pavillions
Playgrounds
Exercise Equipment
Porta-Potty

Shade structures
Water Access
Sports Courts

Open Play Field
Dog Park
Community Garden
Gazebo

ADA Park Equipment
Nature Play Areas
Other

What would your Improvement priorities be for the paris?
Lowest Low Moderate High Highest Comments

Playground equipment
Better lighting

Security Features
Signage

Qther

Are there safaty or maintenanca Issues at any existing parks or open spaces? Please write in the park and concemn below:

Would you be willing to volunteer time to support our parks? Circle One: YES NO
Examples could be participating in work days, community outreach, elc

Would you be willing to donate monay to support our parks? Circle Ona: YES NO
Examples could be monetary donations, benches, trees, plantings, etc

00

54



